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Characteristics of The Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of HC International, Inc. (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Corporate Portfolio

NEIL

COMPANY OVERVIEW

The Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) is one of the
leading e-commerce operators in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
With its professional information services and advanced internet technologies,
it has established a reliable demand and supply platform for small to medium
enterprises (SMEs), and has been providing them with complete business
solutions. Through dedicated efforts and developments over the past 20
years, the Group has expanded its business scope to cover more than 100
cities nationwide, with branches in 13 cities and a service team of about 2,941
individuals.

With its professional experience and skills acquired from various industries over
the past 20 years, the Group not only offers complete marketing solutions
for SMEs through Mai-Mai-Tong, an internet technology based product, it
also offers customers with multi-channel, all-dimensional on-line and off-line
supplementary services through the Group’s traditional marketing products,
namely, “HC Trade Catalogues”, "HC Yellow Page Directory” and “Industrial
Market Research”. The Group successfully hosted Top 10 Enterprises Awards
for around 50 industry sectors through the Group's strong media recourses
and customer base, which help SMEs to build up their brand and enhance
transactions. Such a complementary and multi-dimensional structure allows
the Group to create a unique development path amid the rapid expansion of
the B2B industry in China.

Through the determined implementation of the professional and focused
strategy, the Group has been offering professional and all-dimensional
marketing solutions to customers in those traditional industrial sectors
during the past several years. At the same time, the Group has been actively
expanding into the fast-moving consumer goods markets. Based on the
differences in our targeted market segments, the Group developed two
unique business models for relationship-based customers and transaction-
based customers, respectively. Coupled with our direct sales, agency sales
and telemarketing sales teams, the Group provide relationship-based
customers with one-to-one, in-depth and professional industry solutions, and
transaction-based customers with efficient, user-friendly and standardised
solutions and business platforms. Through these services, the Group satisfies
its customers’ needs. In early 2009, the Group succeeded in passing the
ISO9001 Quality and Management examination and obtaining the certificate.

The Group is committed in providing professional and innovative services
and products to meet market and users’ needs, and to facilitate transactions.
Customer experience and service quality are our constant focus. In the past
several years, the Group’s businesses became more focused, product lines
were more precise, and business model and market demands were more in
line.
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Financial Highlights

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E--F —2-TF —ZTNE —ZTN\F e 3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET ARETT AREFT AREFT
Results from continuing and BESERALEEER
discontinued operations ZEE
Revenue HERA [ EWEY] 391,131 317,655 313,944 279,262
Gross profit EH 394,378 280,188 238,002 237,423 215,284
EBITDA EBITDA 74,881 32,973 28,770 43,272 (20,976)
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders 722 Fligzts 5 AfElS
of the Company wf/ (EE) 41,205 6,935 2,130 1,861 (39,441)
Earning/(loss) per share gRER/(EE)
- Basic —ER 0.0142 0.0044 0.0038 (0.0807)
- Diluted —#E 0.0140 0.0044 0.0038 (0.0807)
Financial Position BB
Net current assets TEEESRE 33,492 11,595 122,828 112,980 71,047
Total assets BEE 622,896 449,735 373,511 306,618 313,174
Total liabilities BERE 350,389 266,510 150,200 93,783 105,562
Total equity s 272,507 183,225 223,311 212,835 207,612
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2008 2009

I Trade catalogues and yellow
page directories
IE¥a8kEaEE
/ On-line services (including

discontinued operations)

7 EREIRIS (DI LSS ET)

1 Market research and analysis
(discontinued operations)
THGTT R DT (RIS E %)

58.7%
[ Seminars and other services
2011 o3 R EMRE
On-line Trade Market
services catalogues research
(including and yellow and analysis Seminars
discontinued page (discontinued and
operations) directories operations) other services Total
B B4 AR A miEMRER
(BFE&LE TH¥E% DT =)
REEK) REEE#H (KRILEEER) H R 5 FE-c)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETTT ARET T ARETTT ARET T

289,581 82,289 55,376 66,486 493,732
2010 —E-TE 166,417 101,437 71,475 51,802 391,131
2009 —ETNF 126,137 114,720 51,231 25,567 317,655
2008 —EENF 114,938 138,723 49,464 10,819 313,944
2007 ZETF 107,826 136,247 32,990 2,199 279,262
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Management’s Statement
BEIEERE

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the financial year ended 31st December 2011, the Group generated a
revenue of approximately RMB493,732,000 (2010: RMB391,131,000) from
continuing and discontinued operations. This represented an increase of
approximately 26.2% in revenue as compared to that in 2010.

During the year ended 31st December 2011, the Group increased its revenue
from continuing operations from approximately RMB317,651,000 in 2010 to
approximately RMB438,356,000, which represented an approximately 38.0%
increase.

For the Group’s financial performance in different segments, a total revenue
of approximately RMB289,581,000 was achieved from the on-line services
segment in 2011, and represented an increase of approximately 74.0%
from approximately RMB166,417,000 in 2010. Revenue from the Group’s
trade catalogues and yellow page directories segment decreased from
approximately RMB101,437,000 in 2010 to approximately RMB82,289,000
in 2011 which represented a decrease of approximately 18.9%. Revenue
derived from seminars and other services segment was RMB66,486,000,
which represents an increase of approximately 28.3% from RMB51,802,000
in 2010.

The gross profit margin of the Group from continuing operations increased by
4.7 percentage points to approximately 84.7% in 2011 (2010: 80.0%). It was
mainly due to the increase of on-line services which have a higher gross profit.

During the year ended 31st December 2011, the Group increased its
operating expenses from continuing operations from approximately
RMB257,785,000 in 2010 to approximately RMB338,401,000 which was
mainly due to the increase of sales staff salaries and commissions, marketing
expenses and agency costs.

The Group achieved a profit for the year of approximately RMB41,366,000
(2010: RMB8,379,000) in 2011, out of which approximately RMB8,560,000
(2010: RMB6,747,000) was recorded from discontinued operations.

As at 31st December 2011, deferred revenue was RMB290,820,000,
representing an increase of approximately 48.4% from the balance in 2010
of RMB195,965,000, due to the increase in multi-year service contracts from
paid customers.

During the year 2011, cash generated from operating activities was

RMB122,970,000, while it was RMB99,093,000 in 2010.

The board of Directors does not recommend payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31st December 2011 (2010: Nil).
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Management’s Statement
ERERE

BUSINESS REVIEW

According to the conclusion and prospects set out in iResearch 2011 China
SME B2B E-Commerce Report, China SME B2B e-commerce transactions
in 2011 amounted to approximately RMB3,400 billion, representing an
increase of 35.7% when compared to 2010. E-commerce operators focus on
establishing a credit system among enterprises, promoting the implementation
of creditability system within the industry. The market barrier of entry become
higher accordingly. The strategy of differentiation must be adopted to capture
users and enhance the competitiveness in the market. According to the
analysis of iResearch, a “mass and comprehensive” B2B platform was difficult
to fulfill the diversed and customised needs of customers. In the future, the
niche markets within the SME B2B e-commerce will be the major growth
driver. The B2B business module tends to be of “deep and professional”
nature and customised service for SMEs will be more emphasized.

As one of the core e-commerce operators, the Group adopted vertical
markets as its strategies. While the Group continues to deepen professional
development of its original B2B e-commerce industrial and consumers
industries, it continues to explore new industries with the aim to provide
service for more SMEs. For products, we upgrade e-commerce products
continuously. The Group targets to provide complete service to the sellers
as well as to address the needs of purchasers. We design and develop
e-commerce products that is suitable for purchasers to enhance the effect
of the SME B2B e-commerce marketing, and improve the success rate of
transactions.

8 HC International, Inc - Annual Report 2011
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Management’s Statement
ERERE

(1) Products

The Group has established a product portfolio with Mai-Mai-Tong and
Biao-Wang search website as core products and internet advertisement,
business information advertisement and China information collection
as supplementary products. The Group has also actively promoted on-
line and off-line products and service such as Top 10 activities and off-
line exhibition. By leveraging on strong advantages of the e-commerce
platform and industry media, we will provide the users with the best
products or business solution to a maximum degree.

On-line Products

Mai-Mai-Tong

Mai-Mai-Tong, as the B2B flagship product of the Company, has
targeted to establish a reliable and diversified vertical-industrial oriented
trade platform for SMEs since its debut in 2004. In addition to functions
like product display, precise search, product speed match, tailor-made
services and direct business opportunities, Mai-Mai-Tong also allows its
customers to grasp every business opportunity promptly by providing
integrated e-commerce services such as industry news access, on-line
discussion and smart internet operation. Besides, the Group appointed
a reputable third party certification company to provide identity
certification for the enterprises.

In 2011, hc360.com upgraded the product function of Mai-Mai-Tong
continuously, conducted two major upgrades in versions of industry Mai-
Mai-Tong 3.0 and industry Mai-Mai-Tong 4.0 respectively, and unveiled
a number of industry leading products with special feature. For example,
the Golden Compass which guides internet merchants how to do
business in internet, Buyer Radar, Top Shop Manager, intelligent Xuan-
Pu 2.0 all of which helps internet merchants to identify and search for
potential customers, and provision of procurement application function
for a huge number of buyers.

Search Products

Search products is one of the key products of the Group’s B2B business.
Along with robust development of the search engine industry, search
service has become a critical tool for SMEs to promote their brands,
seize opportunities and complete transactions. By launching search paid
listing and search golden exhibition stand, the Group further upgraded
its search product in 2011 and co-operated with search engine service
providers like Baidu, Google, Sogou and Soso to provide clients with
unique products and services that promoted simultaneously across
multi-search engines, from which the enterprises can achieve targeted
marketing and maximise their marketing cost efficiency.
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Management’s Statement
ERERE

On-line Advertising

The on-line advertising service of the Group provides an effective
promotion platform for SMEs to explore markets. Each of the
industry specific website under hc360.com has entered into strategic
co-operation with the renowned enterprises of various dedicated
industry to facilitate corporate branding as well as products and services
in comprehensive manner.

Off-line Products

Trade Catalogues

“HC Trade Catalogues” is an authoritative purchasing guide in China.
It covers information on over a thousand enterprises and quotations of
over ten thousand products. It is one of the leading catalogues in B2B
industry in terms of coverage and influence.

Yellow Page Directories

As a business yearbook for specific industries, the “Yellow Page
Directories” features as a systematic compilation of industry information,
product technology and industry news. This product connects
manufacturers, suppliers, management organizations and users in
different industries.

Top 10 Enterprises Awards

hc360.com launched the Top 10 Enterprises Awards in 2008, which
aims at rewarding people who made significant contribution to Chinese
industrial development, and enterprises with outstanding brand
influence and promotion efforts. The theme of Top 10 Enterprises
Awards in 2011 is “brand, responsibility and influence”, with an aim of
raising corporate responsibility and brand influence. In 2011, the Top
10 Enterprises Awards successfully extended to niche markets such as
professional lighting and audio, pure water treatment and engineering
mechanical parts, which covered around 50 sectors and recognised over
thousand of domestic enterprises.

Marketing Channels

To maximise its revenue, the Group established three key sales teams,
namely the Industry Direct Sales, the Agency Sales and the Telemarketing
Sales Teams since 2006, to market its on-line and off-line products and
services to different target market segments.

The Industry Direct Sales Team has a longer history and is currently the
Group's major sales force, focusing on selling high value and high-end
on-line and off-line products, targeting at value-based and relationship-
based customers. It maximises users’ value by providing in-depth
professional products and services in different industrial sectors.

HC International, Inc - Annual Report 2011
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Management’s Statement
ERERE

The Telemarketing Sales Team was formed in August 2006 to meet the
needs of consumer market. It has been expanded rapidly in recent years.
By strengthening the managing system of the Telemarketing Sales Team,
its working efficiency and market promotion ability has been significantly
improved. The Telemarketing Sales Team has taken the important role
in the on-line product marketing channels. The team concentrates on
providing standardised products and services in fast moving consumer
goods market, and providing trading platform with high efficiency in
order to cope with rapid growth of the Group’s customer base.

The Agency Sales Team was established to supplement the Industry
Direct Sales Team, covering over 70 cities in China. Agencies would
extend the Group’s market coverage to regional areas and promote its
brand name to the greatest extent.

Customer Service

The Group's professional service team serving both purchasers and
clients covers over 60 sectors. It facilitates transactions by way of supply-
and-demand content match, on-line negotiations, off-line supply-and-
demand meetings and purchaser tours. Further, the Group integrated
resources from various aspects to issue “Report on Purchasers Practice
Analysis” and “Report on Industrial Products Index Analysis”, in
order to thoroughly study the industry characteristics, member type
and distribution, process of making buying decision, buying practice,
buying cycle and change of concern, and also made predictions and
justifications on buying trend to assist purchasers to complete their
transactions in a more effective way.

Member Care

The Group aims at investing more resources in research and
development for network products and the operation of on-line items
to introduce products and service systems that can meet the changing
requirements of the customers. The Group set up and improved
customer ratings system on the basis of the integration of various
features such as HC FAFA, forums and blogs. The Group launched tailor-
made services in accordance with the status of the members, such as
training seminar, in order to further enrich the experience and increase
the degree of customer satisfaction and reinforce the effect of internet
business communities gradually.
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Management’s Statement
ERERE

PROSPECTS

Since the listing of the shares of the Company on GEM in 2003, the Group
has transformed itself from a traditional media firm to a B2B internet
enterprise, and has been actively exploring its most appropriate development
path through transitions. Especially during these two years, the Group realised
its key competitive strengths, core resources and values, and on this basis,
the Group developed a right direction for the Group. The Group’s in-depth
understanding of customers’ needs, the market, the products and services,
and business operations are the key factors for the Group's future success.

As customer behaviors of the B2B fast-moving consumer goods market can
be characterised by low-value, high frequency and massive transactions of
supply-side and demand-side. An efficient, low-cost, standardised product
and service solution will satisfy the need of the transaction-based customers.

As customer behaviors of the B2B professional industrial market is
characterised by high-value, low-frequency and relative small groups of
supply-side and demand-side, a highly value-added, customised, professional
product and service solution offers relationship-based customers superior
service experience.

Facilitation of transactions is considered to be core to the Group’s business
operations at all times. The Group will continue to focus on this by facilitating
communication and interaction, and providing information and value-added
services.

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | would like to take this

opportunity to thank the management and every member of the Group for
their on-going dedication and hard work in the past year.

Guo Jiang
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Beijing, PRC
20th March 2012
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DIRECTORS

As at 31st December 2011, the Board comprised:

Executive Directors

GUO Fansheng

Aged 56, is an executive Director and the Chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”). Mr. Guo found the Group in October 1992 and is responsible
for the overall strategic development and policy of the Group. From 1990 to
1992, Mr. Guo worked as a manager in a State-owned business information
company in Beijing. From 1987 to 1990, Mr. Guo served as a director of the
Liaison Office and General Office of the Economic System Reform Institute
under the State Commission for Economic Restructuring, and as the deputy
director of the Western China Development Research Centre. Prior to working
at the State Commission for Economic Restructuring, Mr. Guo served from
1982 to 1987 as a senior official in the government of the Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region. Mr. Guo obtained a bachelor degree in industrial
economics from Renmin University of China in 1982. Mr. Guo is the uncle
of Mr. Guo Jiang, an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company.

GUO Jiang

Aged 38, is an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Guo joined the Group in 1996 as a sale manager and
became the chief executive officer of the Group in 2008 and is responsible
for overseeing the operations of the Group. Prior to that, Mr. Guo spent
two years at the Broadcasting Science Institute of the State Administration
of Radio, File and Television as an assistant to director. Mr. Guo graduated
from the Harbin University of Commerce in 1994 with a bachelor degree in
computer science. He also attended the Business Administration Course for
Senior Management of Modern Enterprises conducted by Guanghua Business
School of Peking University in 2002. Mr. Guo is the nephew of Mr. Guo
Fansheng, an executive Director and the Chairman and the spouse of Ms.
Geng Yi, a vice-president of the Group.

GUO Bingbing

Aged 40, is an executive Director and the chief financial officer of the Group.
Ms. Guo joined the Group as the chief financial officer in September 2008.
Ms. Guo has over 8 years of experience in senior financial management in
the internet industries and in companies the securities of which are listed on
NASDAQ. She was a senior finance manager of SOHU.com from 2000 to
2005. Prior to joining the Group in 2008, she served as the financial controller
and the director of Finance Planning & Analysis of eLong.com from 2006 to
2008.

Ms. Guo graduated from Beijing Foreign Studies University. She studied the
Special International MBA at Guang Hua Business School, Beijing University
and completed the Certificate in Global Executive Management in Fuqua
School of Business, Duke University. Ms. Guo is a certified public accountant
in the PRC.

Biographic Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Non-Executive Directors

LI Jianguang

Aged 46, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Li is the vice-president of IDG
Technology Venture Investment, Inc. (“IDG"), a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Li is also a member of IDG Technology Venture Investments,
LLC, which is the general partner of IDG Technology Venture Investments,
LP. Mr. Li is responsible for the investment management of IDG’s China-
related early funds and IDG — Accel China Growth Fund. Prior to that, Mr.
Li worked in Crosby Asset Management Limited as an investment manager.
Mr. Li graduated from Peking University in 1987 with a bachelor degree in
economics and attained a master degree from Guelph University in Canada in
1994. Mr. Li has been serving as a non-executive Director since August 2006.

GUO Wei

Aged 48, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Guo is currently the Chairman
and executive director of Digital China Holdings Limited. Mr. Guo obtained
a master degree from the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of
Science (formerly known as Graduate School of the University of Science and
Technology of China) in 1988. He joined the Legend Group in 1988 and was
once an executive director and senior vice-president of the Legend Group. He is
currently a member of the 11th National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, member of the Advisory Committee for
State Informatization, and president of Beijing Informatization Organization.
Mr. Guo served as an independent non-executive Director from March 2002
to June 2011 and has been serving as a non-executive Director since June
2011.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

ZHANG Ke

Aged 58, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Zhang is a certified
public accountant in the PRC and is currently the chairman and chief partner
of ShineWing Certified Public Accountants. He graduated from Renmin
University of China in 1982 with a bachelor degree in economics majoring
in industry economics. He has about 30 years experience in the fields of
economics, accounting and finance. Mr. Zhang is currently a vice-president
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the
Certified Public Accountants Examination Committee of the Ministry of
Finance and a vice-president of Beijing Association of Forensic Science. Mr.
Zhang has been serving as an independent non-executive Director since
March 2003.

XIANG Bing

Aged 49, is an independent non-executive Director. Dr. Xiang is a Professor
of Accounting and the founding Dean of Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business. He previously taught in the Peking University, Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology and China-Europe International Business School.
Dr. Xiang graduated from the University of Albert with a doctorate degree.
Dr. Xiang has been serving as an independent non-executive Director since
March 2002.
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LEE Wee Ong

Also known as Alex Lee, aged 42, is an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Lee graduated from the Northern University of Malaysia with a bachelor
degree in accounting in 1993. Mr. Lee spent 6 years with Colonial First State
Investments Group and Hambros Australia as a fund manager and was
seconded to CMG CH China Funds Management. Mr. Lee had been the chief
financial officer of the Company, and subsequently the chief strategy officer
of the Company from 2000 to 2006. Mr. Lee is the founder and is now the
chief executive officer of AlexCybot (Beijing) Technology Company Limited
(5 hEE (b R) RHLEBR 2 7)), while holding directorship in MultiVision
(Beijing) Technology Company Limited (JPZe#E4R (46 3R) BHZAER A7) and
Beijing WaterCompass Digital GIS Technology Company Limited (1t 7k Z&
BEFHIEE SR AR A R). Mr. Lee has been serving as an independent
non-executive Director since September 2011.

ZHANG Tim Tianwei

Aged 48, is an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Zhang graduated
from Tsinghua University (%K 22) at the Faculty of Precision Instruments
& Mechanology in July 1986. He is a Master of Economics from the Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences (FFE*t@%IEf7) and a Master of Business
Administration (MBA) from the The University of Chicago. Mr. Zhang has over
20 years of experience in financial and business management. He was the
founder and managing director of Taconic Capital Ltd. from September 2003
to September 2005. He acted as the vice-chairman and general manager
of Unicredit China Capital Limited from September 2005 to June 2007.
He served as the managing director of J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific)
from July 2007 to October 2011 and acted as the chairman of J.P. Morgan
(China) Venture Capital Investment Co. Ltd. since its foundation in 2010 to
October 2011. Mr. Zhang is the managing director of Taconic Capital Group
since November 2011. Mr. Zhang has been serving as an independent non-
executive Director since November 2011.

SENIOR STAFF

As at 31st December 2011 the management of the Company comprised the
following members:

GENG Yi

Aged 38, is a vice-president and the chief human resources officer of the
Group, Ms. Geng joined the Group in August 1995 as an editor and was
appointed as the chief sales officer of the Group in January 2006.

Ms. Geng graduated from the University of International Business Economics
and gained a MBA degree. Ms. Geng Yi is the spouse of Mr. Guo Jiang, an
executive Director.

Biographic Details of Directors and Senior Management
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HONG, John

Aged 42, is a vice-president and the chief technology officer of the Group,
Mr. Hong joined the group in October 2007. Mr. Hong worked at Silicon
Valley from 1994 to 2000, during which he founded Webston Corporation
which mainly rendered technical service for B2B corporations such as
Chemdex. In 2000, he came back to China and founded a video conferencing
software company called VisionNex. Before joining the Group, Mr. Hong was
the vice-president of technology of Linktone (Nasdag: LTON).

Mr. Hong graduated from the Mississippi State University with a bachelor
degree in Computer Science and a master degree in Computer Engineering.

GAO Xin

Aged 36, is a vice-president of the Group and a managing director of a
subsidiary of the Group, Mr. Gao joined the Group in July 2008. Mr. Gao has
ten years management experiences in [T industry. Prior to that, Mr. Gao had
successively served as general manager of Zhejiang District and the deputy
general manager of Channel Sales Department in Lenovo Group as well as the
B2B operation director of Samsung Electronics.

Mr. Gao graduated from Beijing Wuzi University with a bachelor degree in
Engineering. He also studied the EMBA at CEIBS and Serving Postgraduates of
Institute of Psychology in Chinese Academy of Sciences, majoring in Applied
Psychology.

CAl Weihua

Aged 40 is a vice-president of the Group and a general manager of a fellow
company of the Group. He joined the Group in September 1996 and had
been the general manager and sales director of industry business. Mr. Cai has
over 15 years operation management experiences in IT and B2B industries.

Mr. Cai graduated from Renmin University of China majoring in financial
accounting. He also studied EMBA programme at Guanghua School of
Management of Beijing University.

YANG Ning

Aged 34, is a vice-president of the Group and a general manager of an
e-commerce subsidiary of the Group . Mr. Yang joined the Group in October
2006 and has over 12 years operation management experiences in B2B
industry. He worked for Alibaba Group in 1999 to June 2005. He worked in
SGS (Societe Generale de Surveillance) in Switzerland and was engaged in
marketing and sales administration in light industrial products in northern
China prior to joining the Group.

Mr. Yang graduated from Hangzhou Dianzi University with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Engineering. He is studying the EMBA at CEIBS.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31st December 2011, the Group’s cash and bank balances increased by
approximately RMB66,558,000 from approximately RMB188,424,000 as at
31st December 2010 to approximately RMB254,982,000.

The Group had no short-term loans as at 31st December 2011 (2010:Nil).
Gearing ratio of the Group is 0% (2010: 0%) as at 31st December
2011, calculated with reference to nil short-term loans and capital and
reserves attributable to the Company’s equity holders of approximately
RMB272,493,000 (2010: RMB180,430,000). The capital and reserves
attributable to the Company’s equity holders increased by approximately
RMB92,063,000 as compared to last year.

The Group's net current assets amounted to approximately RMB33,492,000
as at 31st December 2011 (2010: RMB11,595,000). Its current ratio, which is
calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities, was approximately
1.10 times as at 31st December 2011 as compared to approximately 1.04
times as at 31st December 2010.

The Group's trade receivables turnover has decreased from approximately
19.5 days in 2010 to approximately 16.8 days in 2011.

The financial position of the Group has remained liquid and healthy.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

A Business Review and a Financial Review of the Group are set out on page 7
to 12 of this report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group had no significant investment held in the year ended 31st
December 2011.

ISSUE OF SHARES UNDER A GENERAL MANDATE

On 10th June 2011, the Company entered into the subscription agreement
(the “Subscription Agreement”) with Talent Gain Developments Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and an independent third
party (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to which the Subscriber has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot
and issue a total number of 53,809,685 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each in the share capital of the Company (the “Subscription Shares”), at
the subscription price of HK$1.50 per Subscription Share (the “Subscription
Price”) to the Subscriber. The Subscription Price represents: (i) a discount of
approximately 6.25% to the closing price of HK$1.60 as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 10th June 2011, being the date of the Subscription Agreement;
and (ii) a discount of approximately 5.06% to the average closing price of
approximately HK$1.58 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the
last five consecutive trading days up to and including 10th June 2011 (the
“Subscription”).

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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The gross proceeds from the Subscription is HK$80,714,528. After deducting
all relevant expenses in relation to the Subscription, the net proceeds of the
Subscription is approximately HK$80,510,000. The Company intends to
use the net proceeds to develop its online products, strengthen technology
platform and enhance sales power to drive revenue growth of the Group. The
Subscription Shares were issued under the general mandate granted to the
Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 13th May
2011 and the Subscription was completed on 24th June 2011.

EMPLOYEES' SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 17th November 2011, the Board adopted an employees’ share award
scheme pursuant to which existing shares of the Company will be acquired
by the trustee from the market at the cost of the Company and be held in
trust for the selected employees until such shares are vested with the relevant
selected employees in accordance with the provision of the share award
scheme.

For principal terms of the employees’ share award scheme, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 17th November 2011.

Since the adoption date, a total of 24,181,000 shares has been granted up to
the date of this report, representing approximately 4.44% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the adoption date.

REFRESHMENT OF SCHEME MANDATE LIMIT
UNDER SHARE OPTION SCHEME

In the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 13th May 2011,
an ordinary resolution was passed by the shareholders of the Company to
refresh the scheme mandate limit under the Share Option Scheme. For details,
please refer to the Company’s circular and announcement dated 26th April
2011 and 13th May 2011 respectively.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 30th May 2011, Jt REBIFRE AR AT (Beijing HC International
Information Co. Limited) (“Beijing Huicong”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into two share transfer agreements (the “Disposal
Agreements”) with 2L EEE (4b5R) AR A A (Huicong Investment
Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd.) (“the Purchaser”). Pursuant to the Disposal
Agreements, Beijing Huicong has conditionally agreed to dispose of, and
the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire, in aggregate 70% of the
equity interests in 1t REIE (=15 550G A A (Beijing Huicong Boxin
Information Consulting Co. Limited) (“Fulfiiment JV Co.”) at a consideration
of RMB7,979,000 and 40% of the equity interest in 1t ES QK EIATIS(E
BB R AT (Beijing Dun & Bradstreet Market Information Consulting
Co., Ltd.) (“Sales JV Co.") at a consideration of RMB13,569,000, respectively.
As the relevant applicable percentage ratios calculated pursuant to the
GEM Listing Rules in respect of above disposal transactions (“Disposals”),
in aggregate, are less than 25%, the Disposals constitute discloseable
transactions of the Company under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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As the Purchaser is owned as to 50% by Mr. Guo Fansheng, an executive
Director and the Chairman and as to 50% by Mr. Guo Jiang, an executive
Director and chief executive officer of the Company, the Purchaser is an
associate of each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang, and thus a
connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the Disposals constitute
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Disposals have been completed as at the end of September
2011. Further details of the Disposals are set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 30th May 2011, 6th July 2011 and the circular of the
Company dated 20th June 2011.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The total number of issued shares of the Company was 546,248,645 as at
31st December 2011.

STAFF

The success of the Group depends on the skills, motivation and commitment
of its staff. As at 31st December 2011, the total number of Group’s
employees were 2,941, among which 2,307 were employed in the Sales and
Marketing Division, 131 were employed in the Editorial Division, 162 were
employed in the Information Technology Division and the remaining were
employed in other divisions of the Group.

Remuneration of employees is generally in line with the market trend and
commensurate with the salary level in the industry, with share options
granted to employees based on individual performance. Other benefits to the
Group's employees include medical insurance, retirement schemes, training
programmes and educational subsidies.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31st December 2011, no asset was pledged to secure any of the
Group’s loan.

EXCHANGE RISK

As the Group's operations are principally in the PRC and majority assets and
liabilities of the Group are denominated in RMB, the Directors believe that the
Group is not subject to significant exchange risk.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31st December 2011, the Group had no contingent liability (2010: Nil).

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
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Report of the Directors
FEERE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the financial year ended 31st December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the financial year by business
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the financial year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 49.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in accumulated losses of the Group during the
financial year are set out on page 54.

Details of the movements in other reserves of the Group are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in share capital and share options of the Company
are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31st December 2011, calculated
under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
RMB155,328,000 (2010: RMB97,784,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 5 of this report.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report
were:
Mr. Guo Fansheng (Chairman) (appointed on 21st March 2000)

Mr. Guo Jiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Guo Bingbing

(appointed on 1st August 2006)
(appointed on 10th November 2010)

Mr. Li Jianguang’
Mr. Guo Wei'

(appointed on 1st August 2006)
(appointed on 8th March 2002 as
an independent non-executive

Director and re-designated
on 10th June 2011 as a non-
executive Director)
Mr. Zhang Ke# (appointed on 28th March 2003)
Dr. Xiang Bing*
Mr. Lee Wee Ong*
Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei#

(appointed on 8th March 2002)
(appointed on 9th September 2011)
(appointed on 1st November 2011)

1 non-executive Directors
# independent non-executive Directors

In accordance with Article 86 of the Company’s articles of association (“Articles
of Association”), Mr. Lee Wee Ong and Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei will be subject
to, and eligible offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Guo Jiang and Mr. Li Jianguang will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Each of Mr. Zhang Ke and Dr. Xiang Bing, has been serving as an independent
non-executive Director for more than or around 9 years. In compliance with
Code A.4.3 of the Code on Corporate Governance which will come into
effect on 1st April 2012, each of Mr. Zhang Ke and Dr. Xiang Bing offered
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

Mr. Guo Wei, who was re-designated during the year, also offered himself for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

The Directors’ profile is set out on pages 13 to 15.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Guo Fansheng, Mr. Guo Jiang and Ms. Guo Bingbing has entered
into a director’s service contract with the Company, whereby each of them
has accepted the appointment as an executive Director of the Company for
a term of three years from 30th November 2009, 1st August 2009 and 10th
November 2010 respectively, which may be terminated by either party giving
three months’ prior written notice or otherwise in accordance with the terms
of their respective service contracts.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, Dr. Xiang Bing, Mr.
Zhang Ke, Mr. Lee Wee Ong and Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei, has entered into a
director’s service contract with the Company, whereby each of Dr. Xiang Bing,
Mr. Zhang Ke, Mr. Lee Wee Ong and Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei has accepted
the appointment for a term of one year, and the service contracts shall be
renewed automatically at the end of the term. Either party may terminate the
service contract at any time by giving one month’s prior written notice or in
accordance with the terms of their respective service contracts. There is no
service contract, which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation), in
respect of any director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed above and in note 23 and note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director was materially interested, whether directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company, its holding company, or any of its fellow subsidiaries and
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR STAFF EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors and senior staff emoluments for the year are set out in
notes 23 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emoluments of the Directors and the senior staff are determined based on
the operating results of the Group, individual performance and/or prevailing
market conditions. The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme
and the Share Award Scheme as an incentive to Directors and senior staff.
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Report of the Directors

BEETHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31st December 2011, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or required to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by the Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of
the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

EERTRARARS A TR RS
B2 R RERORES 2 #ER

IRE

RZT—F+-A=+—8 BERAQATHRE
HRN AR TS E B EE (BB B AEME571
EEHFRBEEA(FHRPEED ] EXVIE T
B ) 2R - BERGD REET - BBIREES
NS IEHIEXVE N ETRESD HBMEARNF K
B§h A2 P 2 R 2 B % ﬁ(@%ﬂﬁﬁmﬁ&ﬁﬁfﬂ%ﬁlJ*ﬁFﬁ
R EFTARA LRI AN ERSORE) - A
RIEFEH KBGO E3I52EEARR Tﬁgaﬁ’éaa
it SREAIZEIR ETHAR RIS d6(kFTill G BE S
TEFRXHHRT LG R AR Rz Em R
KEWT

(a) Directors’ Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of (a) EBEERAATROEEBERDZEE
the Company
Total
number
of shares/  Approximate
Name of Class of Personal Family ~ Corporation Other  underlying percentage of
Director Shares Capacity interests interests interests interests shares  shareholding
Bt/ #E RERL
BEpg Syl 54 B AR RikEH DR HitEs RAH BAK
Guo Jiang Ordinary Beneficial owner/family 61,065,146 10,784,625 - - 71,849,771 13.15%
interests (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1)
Eihin EBR EalE A/ Rk (MzE1) (zE1) (PzE1)
Guo Fansheng Ordinary Beneficial owner 69,749,015 - - - 69,749,015 12.77%
BRAE Lk EaEA
Li Jianguang Ordinary Beneficial owner - - 40,000,384 - 40,000,384 7.32%
(Note 2) (Note 2)
FER Liafk EREAA (fzk2) (PzE2)
Guo Bingbing Ordinary Beneficial owner 7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000 1.28%
(Note 3) (Note 3)
ikik R ERAA (MzE3) (PizE3)
Lee Wee Ong Ordinary Beneficial owner 100,672 - - - 100,672 0.02%
BER EaAA
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Note:

1. Such interests in the Company comprised:

(@) 54,915,771 shares of the Company of which 4,850,625 shares of the
Company are held by Ms. Geng Yi, Mr. Guo Jiang’s spouse; and

(b) 16,934,000 underlying shares derived from the share options granted
under the Share Option Scheme of which 5,934,000 underlying
shares derived from the share options granted to Ms. Geng Yi under
the Share Option Scheme.

Mr. Guo is deemed, or taken to have, interested in the shares and
underlying shares held by Ms. Geng Yi pursuant to the SFO.

2. The references to 40,000,384 shares of the Company relate to the same
block of shares of the Company held by Callister Trading Limited, the entire
share capital of which is owned by Mr. Li Jianguang. Accordingly, Mr. Li
Jianguang is deemed, or taken to have, interested in the said 40,000,384
shares of the Company pursuant to the SFO.

3. Such interests in the Company comprised 4,000,000 underlying Shares
derived from the share options granted to Ms. Guo Bingbing under the
Share Option Scheme and 3,000,000 underlying Shares derived from the
awarded shares granted to Ms. Guo Bingbing under the employee’s share
award scheme of the Company adopted by the Board on 17th November
2011.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company has any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or required to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by the Directors as referred to in Rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to written resolutions of the shareholders of the Company dated
30th November 2003, two share option schemes, a pre-IPO share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) were adopted by the Company.

The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share Option
Scheme were summarised in the paragraph headed “Share options” under
the section headed Statutory and General Information” in Appendix V of the
prospectus of the Company dated 8th December 2003.
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OUTSTANDING SHARE OPTIONS & RATE 2 FE IR 1
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (a) BEAXRABRBRABRE S
As at 31st December 2011, options to subscribe for an aggregate of R-ZE——F+-_A=+—80 REBEILH
9,147,120 shares of the Company granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share R AT IR ERT B T Al R A $£9,147,120%
Option Scheme were outstanding. Details of which were as follows: AR B 7 AR M AR AT - B BRIEET
W
Number of share options
BREHA
Exercise As at Granted Exercised Lapsed As at
price per 1st January during during during 31st December
Name of grantee Date of grant share 2011 the period the period the period 2011
R=B--% R=B-—-F
ARARE R AH BRITEE -B-H REIRERL RERITRE RER%A¥ +=A=t-8B
HKS (Note 1)
BT (MzE1)
Ex-employees
AiER
FAN Qimiao 2nd December 2003 0.44 5,111,104 - - - 5,111,104
BRRA “ZR=F+-ACH
GU Yuanchao 2nd December 2003 0.44 3,777,774 - - - 3,777,774
BES ZZE=F+-ACH
Other employees
HitlES
In aggregate (Note 2) 2nd December 2003 0.44 258,242 - - - 258,242
EatiE) “EER=ETCACH
Total
@zt 9,147,120 - - - 9,147,120
Note: BEE -
1. Each option has a 10-year exercise period, which may be exercised after 1. BHBEREZITERARIOF  RARFRG
the expiry of twelve months from the date on which trading in the shares BRERIZEREERBR(I EHHE]  BI=F
of the Company first commenced on GEM (the “Listing Date”), being 17th ZZF+ AT T EAEmE R
December 2003. Commencing from the first, second and third anniversaries FOE - RELETEBZE— F-RE=ZA
of the Listing Date, the relevant grantee may exercise options up to 33.3%, Fig BAARARZADINTHEEFE 2B
66.6% and in full, respectively, of the shares of the Company comprised in FRIEFTS I 2 R R EIIRAD 2 33.3% * 66.6% I
his or her option (less any number of shares of the Company in respect of 100% (FNER AT B A B 17 BB AR TS I iy
which the option has been previously exercised). KRARBRHEE) -
2. Asat 31st December 2011, there were 3 employees who had been 2. RZZE——H+ZA=+—8 REAXKAH
granted with options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to acquire an BIRAIER TR M3ERER LA £ RE
aggregate of 258,242 shares of the Company. 258,242 & AN RIRRAD 2 BB AR AE -
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(b) Share Option Scheme (b) HERRAERTE
As at 31st December 2011, options to subscribe for an aggregate of R-E——F+=-F=+—08 ' RIEHERET
62,764,000 shares of the Company granted pursuant to the Share BT AT R A $£62,764,00008 AN A A B 1D 2

FBARER RTTE - BRIFHBHIIT -

Option Scheme were outstanding. Details of which were as follows:

26

Exercise As at Granted Exercised Lapsed As at
price per  1st January during during during 31st December
Name of grantee Date of grant share 2011 the period the period the period 2011
R=B——-% R-B-——-%
ERARE BB BRITEE —A-B  REREH  RABRTE RERE#E t-A=+-H
HK$ (Note1)
B (FisE1)
Directors
£
Guo Jiang 18th February 2004 2.40 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
Elp “ETWEZATNH
23rd June 2006 1.49 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
ZEESNFEAAZTZR
11th July 2007 124 2,200,000 - - - 2,200,000
ZETLEELATH
29th September 2008 0.604 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
“ET\ENAZTNE
7th April 2010 0.82 4,800,000 - - - 4,800,000
“Z-TH5MA+A
Guo Bingbing 29th September 2008 0.604 800,000 - - - 800,000
kK “ZZ\FAAZTIA
7th April 2010 0.82 3,200,000 - - - 3,200,000
“Z-THNA+A
Senior management
BREBASR
Geng Yi 18th February 2004 2.40 300,000 - - - 300,000
i “ETWEZATNA
23rd June 2006 1.49 434,000 - - - 434,000
ZETRFAAZTZER
29th September 2008 0.604 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
ZET\ENAZTNE
7th April 2010 0.82 4,200,000 - - - 4,200,000
“E-ZH5MA+A
John Hong 29th September 2008 0.604 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
HES “ZZ\FAAZTIA
7th April 2010 0.82 3,200,000 - - - 3,200,000
“E-ZH5MA+A
Gao Xin 29th September 2008 0.604 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
ST ZEE\ENAZTNE
7th April 2010 0.82 3,200,000 - - - 3,200,000
“Z-ZH5MA+A
Cai Weihua 18th February 2004 24 200,000 - - - 200,000
B —ZEME_RTN\A
23rd June 2006 1.49 200,000 - - - 200,000
—EEREAAZTER
29th September 2008 1.24 440,000 - - - 440,000
—ZEN\FAAZTAR
29th September 2008 0.604 600,000 - (200,000) - 400,000
“ZEN\FAAZTAR
7th April 2010 0.82 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000
“E-LTENALHA
Yang Ning 23rd June 2006 1.49 200,000 - - - 200,000
BE ZEEREAAZTER
11th July 2007 124 400,000 - - - 400,000
ZETLELATH
29th September 2008 0.604 400,000 - - - 400,000
ZTT\FAAZTAA
7th April 2010 0.82 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
“E-TENALHA
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Exercise As at Granted Exercised Lapsed As at
price per  1stJanuary during during during 31st December
Name of grantee Date of grant share - 201; the period the period the period Heg 2011
RBARE R B BRTEE —R—H REARE  RABRTE  AERESE t-A=1+-8
HK$ (Note1)
o (FizE1)
Other employees
HitES
In aggregate (Note 2) 18th February 2004 2.40 5,374,000 - - (245,000) 5,129,000
ERGE?) ZETWEZATN\H
In aggregate (Note 3) 23rd June 2006 1.49 1,808,000 - - (274,000) 1,534,000
AFf(HE3) ZEREAA-T=H
In aggregate (Note 4) th July 2007 1.24 6,255,000 - (260,000) (668,000) 5,327,000
mﬂl?ﬁ‘izl) —fftitﬂﬂ- =
In aggregate (Note 5) 29th September 2008 0.604 5,420,000 - (2,100,000) (120,000) 3,200,000
GEHI‘H‘ES) ZZT\EAAZTNAB
Inaggregate (Note 6)  7th April 2010 0.82 10,300,000 - (1,000,000) (400,000) 8,900,000
GEHI‘H‘E) ZT-TFENALH
In aggregate (Note 7) ~ 28th March 2011 1.108 - 3,000,000 - (100,000) 2,900,000
EaltiEY)) —T—FZA=-1N\H
Total
st 65,131,000 3,000,000 (3,560,000) (1,807,000) 62,764,000
Notes: BEE

1.

Each option has a 10-year exercise period, which may be exercised after the
expiry of twelve months from the date of the grant of options.

For the options exercisable at HK$2.40 granted on 18th February 2004, the
relevant grantees may exercise options up to 33.3%, 66.6% and in full,
respectively, of the shares of the Company comprised in his or her option
(less any number of shares of the Company in respect of which the option
has been previously exercised), commencing from the first, second and third
anniversaries of the date of the grant of options.

For the options exercisable at HK$1.49 granted on 23rd June 2006, the
relevant grantees may exercise these options in a 10-year period starting
from the expiry of twelve months from the date of the grant of options.

For the options exercisable at HK$1.24 granted on 11th July 2007, the
relevant grantees may exercise options up to 50% and in full, respectively,
of the shares of the Company comprised in his or her option (less any
number of shares of the Company in respect of which the option has been
previously exercised), commencing from the first and second anniversaries
of the date of the grant of options.

For the options exercisable at HK$0.604 granted on 29th September 2008,
the relevant grantees may exercise these options in a 10-year period starting
from the expiry of twelve months from the date of the grant of options.

For the options exercisable at HK$0.82 granted on 7th April 2010, the
relevant grantees may exercise options up to 50% and 100%, respectively,
of the shares of the Company comprised in his or her option (less any
number of shares of the Company in respect of which the option has been
previously exercised), commencing from the first and second anniversaries
of the date of the grant of options.

For the options exercisable at HK$1.108 granted on 28th March 2011, the
relevant grantees may exercise options up to 50% and 100%, respectively,
of the shares of the Company comprised in his or her option (less any
number of shares of the Company in respect of which the option has been
previously exercised), commencing from the first and second anniversaries
of the date of the grant of options.

1.

BHBREZTERRI0F  REREREHE
HRest+ —E R BRI TATIE o

RRZETNF A+ N\BEEARITEE
2408 TTATENBERIEN S - AERRARE
BREKLBH E— FRE=ZBFE -
BEADRITEEREZERERBIRZ
NAFRED Z33.3% ~ 66.6% K2 H (KT
ﬁjiﬁaEﬁﬁaﬁS!%H%Eﬁﬁiﬁ&WKﬂaﬁﬂﬁfﬁ%ﬁz
Q o

BRZBTRERNAZ = AREAIRITEE
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TR S ERE -

MR —ZE—FFM AL BREARTHE0.82
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50% K 2 8 (R ELBE BT A BB A AT S
MHARRBRMDEE) ©
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44 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme
to acquire an aggregate of 5,129,000 shares of the Company at HK$2.40
per share.

22 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme
to acquire an aggregate of 1,534,000 shares of the Company at HK$1.49
per share.

28 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme
to acquire an aggregate of 5,327,000 shares of the Company at HK$1.24
per share.

12 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme
to acquire an aggregate of 3,200,000 shares of the Company at HK$0.604
per share.

10 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme
to acquire an aggregate of 8,900,000 shares of the Company at HK$0.82
per share.

21 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme
to acquire an aggregate of 2,900,000 shares of the Company at HK$1.108
per share.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 18th
February 2004, determined using the Binomial Model value model, was
approximately RMB20,193,000. The significant inputs into the model were
the exercise price of HK$2.4, standard deviation of expected share price
returns of 32%, expected life of options ranging from 5.4 to 6.6 years,
expected dividend paid out rate of 0% and annual risk-free interest rate
ranging from 1.34% to 4.43%. The volatility measured at the standard
deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis
of historical price movement of the Company and other comparable
companies with similar business nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 23rd
June 2006, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was
approximately RMB3,919,000. The significant inputs into the model were
exercise price of HK$1.49, standard deviation of expected share price
returns of 34.8%, expected life of options ranging from 3.2 to 5.5 years
expected dividend paid out rate of 0% and annual risk free interest rate of
4.911%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share
price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical price movement
of the Company and other comparable companies with similar business
nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 11th
July 2007, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was
approximately RMB9,390,000. The significant inputs into the model were
exercise price of HK$1.24 standard deviation of expected share price returns
of 49.0%, expected life of options ranging from 2.4 to 6.2 years expected
dividend paid out rate of 0% and annual risk-free interest rate of 4.757%.
The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share price
returns is based on statistical analysis of historical price movement of the
Company and other comparable companies with similar business nature.

HC International, Inc - Annual Report 2011

BIEBRIETEE M4 EERLATUTR
2,407 U A $£5,129,000 8 AN A B %15 2 B
f&HE o

REBREFEICH2ZEEREATNTR
1,497 LRI A 1,534,000 A A AR D 2 B8
f&hEE

RIBEBRIETE D M28REERLAUTR
1.2478 TR A ££5,327,0008% & A AL 2
fiiciee

BIEBRETEERMNE2EERLATUTR
0.6047% L7 8E 4 ££3,200,000 A8 & 2 A f& 19D 2
FERRAE -

REBREFZSHCHMI0REEREATNTHR
0.82/8 LR IS4 ££8,900,00008 AN 1 E1i& 17 2 B8
fi&HEe -

RBEREAEEADLEEROTUATR
1.10878 7L R EE & $£2,900,000 8 A 2 R 15 2
R -

FERZEAGEEERGER_ZTNF_A
+\BRR RS AR S B FTIR H RARE 2 AR
#5 ABR#20,193,0007C » HAZERZ B
SHAITHEE2.45T - B RERRE 2 IZE
RZE32% - BREZBHFHANF54F %66
FAE - FBHRER0% REEERRFIENT
1.34% % 4.43% ° IZRBTAFT AR (B B 3 2 12 (R
EFETE2RE - IRBAA R REBIEE R
Uz E AT BB AR 2 BEBKEE 2 Gt
HEDWTETE -

FEAZEAGEEAHER_TSTF A
Zt=BREERET MR EREZ AT
BEXHAARES 19,0007 « HAZEXZEE
2ERITEE 4987 - T RERRE 22
Ef{RE34.8% - BREZEAFHAN T3 265
S5.5FTE -« BEHREE0% K FEERR =
4.911% ° LZIRIBFHR BRI IR EREZFE
2R - TIREA R R REBMEECZ K
AELBRARZBEEEKREZ FABFTON

e
Al °

FAEAGEEAHER-_TSTLF LA
+— RIRERE AR E S BT H B R E 2 A FE
# B AREE9,390,0007T c MAZKER ZEE
2ERITHEE1.2487T - FBERERRER 22
H({EA9.0% - BREZEAFHNT24F5
6.2F % - BAHRER0% L FEERKFIER
4.757% ° IRBRIBTIRE R ATEREFAE
ZREWE - TIRBAR AR REBMERELZ i
AELLBRARZBEEEKREZ FABFT AN
FTHE -




Report of the Directors
EEEWE

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 29th
September 2008, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model,
was approximately RMB2,756,000. The significant inputs into the model
were exercise price of HK$0.604 standard deviation of expected share price
returns of 72.2%, expected life of options ranging from 3.8 to 4.8 years
expected dividend paid out rate of 0% and annual risk-free interest rate of
3.133%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share
price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical price movement
of the Company and other comparable companies with similar business
nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 7th
April 2010, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was
approximately RMB12,527,000. The significant inputs into the model were
exercise price of HK$0.82 standard deviation of expected share price returns
of 79.8%, expected life of options ranging from 3.4 to 5.9 years expected
dividend paid out rate of 0% and annual risk-free interest rate of 2.865%.
The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share price
returns is based on statistical analysis of historical price movement of the
Company and other comparable companies with similar business nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 28th
March 2011, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was
approximately RMB1,377,000. The significant inputs into the model were
exercise price of HK$1.108 standard deviation of expected share price
returns of 77.4%, expected life of options ranging from 3.8 to 4.9 years
expected dividend paid out rate of 0% and annual risk-free interest rate
2.82%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share
price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical price movement
of the Company and other comparable companies with similar business
nature.

In the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 13th
May 2011, an ordinary resolution was passed by the shareholders of
the Company to refresh the scheme mandate limit under the Share
Option Scheme. For details, please refer to the Company’s circular and
announcement dated 24th April 2011 and 13th May 2011 respectively.

In respect of employees resigned during the period whose share options
have not been vested, such share options are lapsed, and the share
compensation costs recognised previously are credited to condensed
consolidated final statement of comprehensive income.

The values of share options recognised in share-based compensation
reserves are subject to a number of assumptions and with regard to the
limitation of the valuation model.

The Company has granted share options which entitle the grantees to
subscribe for an aggregate of 3,000,000 new shares of the Company during
the year. The amount payable by the grantees of an option to the Company
on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.

The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the
date on which these options were exercised was HK$1.629 per share.
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EMPLOYEES' SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 17th November 2011, the Board adopted an employees’ share award
scheme pursuant to which existing shares of the Company will be acquired
by the trustee from the market at the cost of the Company and be held in
trust for the selected employees until such shares are vested with the relevant
selected employees in accordance with the provision of the share award
scheme.

For principal terms of the employees’ share award scheme, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 17th November 2011.

Since the adoption date, a total of 24,181,000 shares has been granted up to
the date of this report, representing approximately 4.44% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the adoption date. The awarded shares remain
outstanding as at 31st December 2011 are set out below:

EERAD RS
RZTB——F+—A+tH EESRNEBERNE
EEtE - Bt AR EHEBALRBRARN
(BABARAAR) WAETERARKRERER
B BEZEBROREE B RO RZEE BGSURE T
HEAEEEER -

EERMN R B2 TRIEF  BRHEARFRBHR
B s = e e = PN

BRMBHEEARE QS BHEA 24,181,000
B - AEERARRIE RGN B BB 1T AL
4.44% - RZB——F+_A=+—H " HARBEZ
EEROOT

As at As at
Number of 1st January Vested 31st December
Awarded 2011 during 2011
Name of grantee Date of grant shares H-—Z——%& the period RoB——
ERAER R B ERBROEE —HA—H HrEE +t=-—A=t+—8H
Directors
BEx
Guo Bingbing 23rd November 2011
FRikik —E——%+—AZ+=H 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Senior management
BREBEAE
John Hong 23rd November 2011
HEE —E——F+—HF=+=H 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Cai Weihua 23rd November 2011
e —E——F+—HF=+=H 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Yang Ning 23rd November 2011
5% —E——F+—HF=+=H 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Other employees
Hiufg s
In aggregate (Note 1) 23rd November 2011
af (ME—) —T——%+—-HA=+=H 12,181,000 - - 12,181,000
Total
et 24,181,000 - - 24,181,000
Notes: M

1. 68 employees have been granted an aggregate of 12,181,000 awarded shares.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at
chief

31st December 2011, the interest of persons (not being a Director or
executive of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or required to be entered
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

FERRRAMATRERTRD R
HERD 2 ERRAR

RIB——F+-A=+—H  REARAR’RN RIEH
Pein B RIBEE S MR GROIEXVENFE2RE3
DEAFMEARRF LI PT  ARBIRIEES R T
1EPIZE336IRCARARIFENELM 2 EE 2 AL
(WFEEERADATHRAER) T

Approximate

Nature of Percentage of
Name of shareholder Class of shares Long position  Short position Capacity share capital
BREE BB igripbell HA KEMEH S50 REBQOE DL
Kent C. McCarthy Ordinary 89,740,000 - Interest in controlled 16.43%
AR (Note 1) corporations
(Mt sE—) RirthEEE R
Patrick J. McGovern Ordinary 78,730,697 - Interest in controlled 14.41%
IR (Note 2) corporations
(f3E=) RirthEEER
Geng Yi Ordinary 71,849,771 - Beneficial owner/ 13.15%
kg EImA% (Note 3) Family interests
(MzE=) EnlAAN RikkEn
Digital China Holdings Limited  Ordinary 53,809,685 — Interests in controlled 9.85%
TN BRI AR B R A A Timk (Note 4) corporations
(Bt ) RitEEE R
Zhou Quan Ordinary 53,256,743 — Interest in controlled 9.75%
Az B (Note 5) corporations
(MsEF) RirtEEE R
Notes: WS

The reference to 89,740,000 shares of the Company comprises 84,533,055 shares
and 5,206,945 shares held by Jayhawk Private Equity Fund, L.P. and Jayhawk
Private Equity Co-Invest Fund, L.P. respectively. The entire issued share capital of
each of the abovementioned entities is owned by Mr. Kent C. McCarthy.

The reference to 78,730,697 shares of the Company comprised (i) 25,473,954
shares, (ii) 16,664,743 shares and (iii) 36,592,000 shares owned by (i) IDG
Technology Venture Investment, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of International
Data Group, Inc., which is owned as to approximately 33.33% by Mr. Patrick J.
McGovern, (i) IDG Technology Venture Investments, L.P., a limited partnership
controlled by IDG Technology Venture Investments, LLC, which is jointly controlled
by Mr. Patrick J. McGovern and Mr. Zhou Quan, and (iii) IDG Technology Venture
Investment Ill, L.P., a limited partnership controlled by IDG Technology Venture
Investment Ill, LLC, which is jointly controlled by Mr. Patrick J. McGovern and Mr.
Zhou Quan, respectively.

Such interest in the Company comprises: (a) 54,915,771 shares of the Company
of which 50,065,146 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Guo Jiang, who is Ms.
Geng Yi's spouse; and (b) 16,934,000 underlying shares derived from the share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme of which 11,000,000 underlying
shares derived from the share options granted to Mr. Guo lJiang under the Share
Option Scheme.

Ms. Geng is deemed, or taken to have, interested in the shares and underlying
shares held by Mr. Guo Jiang pursuant to the SFO.

1. %89,740,0008 A1 Bl 5 B35 5 Bl Jayhawk Private
Equity Fund, L.P.f2Jayhawk Private Equity Co-Invest
Fund, L.P.#75 284,533,055/ 2 5,206,945/ A% (% ° -
MEEE B2 2 EE BTG fKent C. McCarthyst
£ -

2. %78,730,697 B AN X A fk 19 B2 45 ()25,473,954 %
(i1)16,664,743 f% + % (iii)36,592,000 f% + % Bl &5 (i)
International Data Group, Inc(FPatrick J. McGovern%t
H A #33.33% 5 ) )2 EHIE A FIDG Technology
Venture Investment, Inc. : (i)lDG Technology Venture
Investments, LLC(fPatrick J. McGovernft £ K& &%
S HEE ) R HI R B IR & #121DG Technology
Venture Investments, L.P. : ] (iii)IDG Technology
Venture Investment Ill, LLC(fPatrick J. McGovernst
ERAREEXRZES)ERNEREZEEIDG
Technology Venture Investment Ill, L.PiEH °

3. EZERARRBIZERBIE ¢ (a) 54,915, 77 1R QR

9 + EAR50,065,146% A A% B Bk G 22 = 2 Bl 4@
THEAERE - RO)IREERE SR 2 BREE
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4. The references to 53,809,685 Shares of the Company held by the Talent Gain
Developments Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Digital China (BVI) limited,
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Digital China Holdings Limited.

5. The reference to 53,256,743 shares of the Company comprises (i) 16,664,743
shares and (ii) 36,592,000 shares owned by (i) IDG Technology Venture
Investments, L.P., a limited partnership controlled by IDG Technology Venture
Investments, LLC, which is jointly controlled by Mr. Patrick J. McGovern and
Mr. Zhou Quan, and (i) IDG Technology Venture Investment Ill, L.P., a limited
partnership controlled by IDG Technology Venture Investment Ill, LLC, which is
jointly controlled by Mr. Patrick J. McGovern and Mr. Zhou Quan, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2011, the Company had not
been notified of any interests or short positions of substantial shareholders or
other persons in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which are
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Certain related party transactions entered into by the Group, as disclosed in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements, also constitute (i) connected
transactions or (ii) continuing connected transactions under the GEM Listing
Rules (as amended from time to time), and are required to be disclosed in
accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The following transactions between certain connected persons (as defined
in the GEM Listing Rules) and the Company have been entered into and/or
ongoing for which relevant disclosure if necessary and had been made by the
Company in accordance with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

i.  Connected Transactions Disclosed During the Year Ended 31st
December 2011
On 30th May 2011, R EZ2EBEEEFABR QA (Beijing HC
International Information Co., Limited) (“Beijing Huicong”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into two share transfer
agreements (the “Disposal Agreements”) with ZIRIGEEIE (b R)
BPFR/A7A] (Huicong Investment Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd.) (“the
Purchaser”). Pursuant to the Disposal Agreements, Beijing Huicong has
conditionally agreed to dispose of, and the Purchaser has conditionally
agreed to acquire, in aggregate 70% of the equity interests in 4k
ZRREEEEZMREMRAT (“Fulfilment JV Co.”) at a consideration
of RMB7,979,000 and 40% of the equity interest in It RESE K
ZIAHISE B MAR AR (“Sales JV Co.”) at a consideration of
RMB13,569,000 respectively. As the relevant applicable percentage
ratios calculated pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules in respect of above
disposal transactions (“Disposals”), in aggregate, are less than 25%,
the Disposals constitute discloseable transactions of the Company under
Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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As the Purchaser is owned as to 50% by Mr. Guo Fansheng, an
executive Director and the Chairman and as to 50% by Mr. Guo Jiang,
an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Company,
the Purchaser is an associate of each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr.
Guo Jiang, and thus a connected person of the Company. Accordingly,
the Disposals constitute connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Disposals have been
completed as at the end of September 2011. Further details of the
Disposals are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 30th
May 2011, 6th July 2011 and the circular of the Company dated 20th
June 2011.

Continuing Connected Transactions (the “Transactions”)

1.

On 28th November 2008, the two joint venture companies formed
under the Co-operation and Framework Agreement referred to
the Company’s announcement and circular dated 21st October
2008 and 7th November 2008 respectively, it &85 K E /5
=B AR AT (“Sales V"), which was a connected person of
the Group and 1t REREF(E(E 8B AR A A (“Fulfilment JV"),
which was a subsidiary of the Company, entered into a fulfilment
services agreement (the “FSAT").

Pursuant to the FSA1, Fulfilment JV shall provide fulfilment services
to Sales JV for an initial term of 3 years (renewable for subsequent
3 year periods upon further agreement by the parties) commencing
from 28th November 2008. Fulfilment JV shall charge a fulfilment
charge for the fulfilment services provided at a percentage of
the net revenues achieved by Sales JV as follows: (a) for the first
12-month period: 66.7%; (b) for the second 12-month period:
67.3%; and (c) for the third 12-month period: 66.2%. The
annual transaction amounts for each of the four years ended 31st
December 2008 and ending 31st December 2009, 31st December
2010 and 31st December 2011 were capped at RMB4,000,000,
RMB57,000,000, RMB78,000,000 and RMB&89,000,000,
respectively.
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The disposal of the Fulfilment JV was completed on 30th
September 2011, the transactions pursuant to the FSA1 were
no longer Continuing Connected Transactions of the Group
since then. The actual transaction amount for the period from
1st January 2011 to 30th September 2011 was approximately
RMB49,060,000.

On 28th November 2008, pursuant to the Co-operation and
Framework Agreement, Sales JV and Beijing Huicong, a subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a fulfilment services agreement (the
"FSA2").

Pursuant to the FSA2, Beijing Huicong shall provide fulfilment
services to Sales JV for an initial term of 3 years (renewable for
subsequent 3 year periods upon further agreement by the parties)
commencing from 28th November 2008. Beijing Huicong shall
charge a fulfilment charge for the fulfilment services provided
based on actual cost of fulfilment plus 12%. The annual transaction
amounts for each of the four years ended 31st December 2008
and ending 31st December 2009, 31st December 2010 and 31st
December 2011 were capped at RMB740,000, RMB9,200,000,
RMB12,100,000 and RMB13,960,000 respectively.

The FSA2 was expired on 28th November 2011 and was not
renewed. The actual transaction amount for the period from
1st January 2011 to 28th November 2011 was approximately
RMB9,286,000.

HC International, Inc - Annual Report 2011

AEEHERYNAZRRNRSER-E
——FNA=THZEK - RIBFEORB
BTN BN T BRARERRERE
XH-BE——F—-A-RAE-F——
FNA=ZTEHHNERZSSEHRA
[R#49,060,0007T °

REZZZNE+—AZ+\RB - RIEAE
RAEZR I - HE S E AR EARRRNE
REE R ZIRR] S B # RS ek ([ R KO AR
®ipE25% 1) -

RIEEHOBRISHE25: - It RERERE
EAENAIRBEEARY  BZTTN\F
T—AZ+ BRI AH=F (k%
AR E— P HEEHE=F) - kR
LIRS RBHZERKRASIN12%5
RIEZEBHOBRBUDNBNER HE-Z
TNF+=—A=+—8B  ZTTNF+=
A=+—H Z=—TF+=A=+—H
M —TE——F+-A=1+—RHIUEAFE
BEFZFERGEELRSBARE
740,0007¢C * AFR%9,200,0007T « AREE
12,100,0007T & A R #£13,960,0007T °

BAORBEHE2HER=ZE——F+— A
ZHN\REH - BEEEH - BT ——4F
—A—BE=Z2—F+—A=+N\BH
EOER RS EL A ARKEI,286,000

JT °©



Report of the Directors
EEEWE

On 28th November 2008, pursuant to the Co-operation and
Framework Agreement, Fulfilment JV and 83 EE [ KA
R FHAABRAT ("HDBC”) entered into a data purchase
agreement (the “DPA").

Pursuant to the DPA, Fulfilment JV shall purchase data and related
products and services which requires in connection with its
fulfilment services under the FSA1 exclusively from HDBC for an
initial term of 3 years (renewable for subsequent 3 year periods
upon further agreement by the parties) commencing from 28th
November 2008. The DPA includes a price list for such products
and services that shall be based on the lowest domestic price paid
by HDBC's local clients in the PRC. The annual transaction amounts
for each of the four years ended 31st December 2008 and ending
31st December 2009, 31st December 2010 and 31st December
2011 were capped at RMB67,000, RMB817,000, RMB1,017,000
and RMB1,100,000 respectively.

The disposal of the Fulfilment JV was completed on 30th
September 2011, the transactions pursuant to the DPA were
no longer Continuing Connected Transactions of the Group
since then. The actual transaction amount for the period from
1st January 2011 to 30th September 2011 was approximately
RMB35,000.

The FSA1, the FSA2 and the DPA were approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company by ordinary resolutions
passed at the extraordinary general meeting held on 24th
November 2008. For details of the FSA1, the FSA2 and the DPA,
please refer to the announcement dated 21st October 2008 and
the circular dated 7th November 2008 of the Company.
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Pursuant to the relevant requirements under the GEM Listing Rules, the
Transactions have been reviewed by the independent non-executive
Directors. The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the
Transactions have been entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (b) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditors’ Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group on page 33 to 36 of this report in accordance with
Rule 20.38 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company’s auditor confirmed
that the Transactions (a) have received the approval of the Board, (b) are
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company in relation to those
involving provision of goods or services by the Group, (c) have been entered
into in accordance with the relevant agreement, and (d) have not exceed the
relevant annual caps. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the respective percentages of purchases attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers and the sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers combined was less than 30% of the total value of the
Group's purchases and sales.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors, their associates
or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company established an
audit committee on 24th July 2003 with written terms of reference based on
the guidelines set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” published
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and internal control procedures of the Group. The
audit committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Zhang Ke and Mr. Xiang Bing and a non-executive Director, Mr. Li Jianguang.
Mr. Zhang Ke is the Chairman of the audit committee.

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with management of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, the
internal control procedures, the annual results of the Company for the year
ended 31st December 2011 and has met with external auditors and discussed
the financial matters of the Group that arose during the course of audit for
the year ended 31st December 2011. The audit committee held 4 meetings
during the year.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors consider that the Company had complied with the code
provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules throughout the reporting period.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Each of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) has confirmed that none of them had any business or interest
in any company that materially competes or may compete with the business
of the Group or any other conflict of interests with the interests of the Group
during the year ended 31st December 2011.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a written confirmation or an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the
Company considers the independent non-executive Directors are or have been
remained independent.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
of the Company, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the
Company.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There are no material events which have taken place subsequent to the
balance sheet date to the date of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the shares of the Company during the year ended 31st
December 2011.

AMOUNT OF CAPITALISED INTEREST

Save as disclosed in this report, no interest has been capitalised by the Group
during the year.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the board of Directors
HC International, Inc.
Guo Jiang
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Beijing, PRC, 20th March 2012
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INTRODUCTION

Maintaining high standards of business ethics and corporate governance
practices has always been one of the Company’s goals. This report describes
its corporate governance practices, explains the applications of the principles
of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 15 of
the GEM Listing Rules (the “Code”) and deviations, if any.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied no more or less with the provisions of the
Code. The Company believes that by achieving high standard of corporate
governance, the corporate value and accountability of the Company can
be enhanced and the shareholders’ interests can be maximised. The Board
has continued to monitor and review the Company’s progress in respect of
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance. Meetings were held
throughout the year and where appropriate, circulars and other guidance
notes were issued to Directors and senior management of the Company to
ensure awareness to issues regarding corporate governance practices.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES" SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted written guidelines regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms not less than the required standard of dealings as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules on 20th March 2006.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have complied
with such code of conduct and the required standard of dealings and its code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors throughout the year
ended 31st December 2011.

On 20th March 2006, the Board also adopted written guidelines on terms not
less than the required standard of dealings for relevant employees in respect
of their dealings in the securities of the Company. Prior to the adoption
of such an internal code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
employees, relevant employees who had in their possession of price-sensitive
information were formally briefed on the dealing restrictions in relation to
the securities of the Company at management meetings during the reporting
period.

Corporate Governance Report
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine Directors, of whom
three are executive Directors, two are non-executive Directors and four are
independent non-executive Directors. The participation of non-executive
Directors in the Board provides the Company with a wide range of expertise
and experience, and plays an important role in the work of the Board and
brings independent judgement on issues relating to the Company's strategy,
performance, conflicts of interest and management process to ensure that
the interests of all shareholders of the Company have been duly considered.
All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company. Each executive Director has sufficient experience to hold the
position so as to carry out his/her duties effectively and efficiently.

In full compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed four independent non-executive Directors, at least
one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence, and the Company considers such Directors to be independent
in accordance with each and every guideline set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules.
The Board as at 31st December 2011 comprised:
Executive Directors Guo Fansheng (Chairman),
Guo Jiang (Chief Executive Officer),
Guo Bingbing
Li Jianguang, Guo Wei

(re-designated on 10th June 2011)
Zhang Ke, Xiang Bing,
Lee Wee Ong,

(appointed on 9th September 2011)
Zhang Tim Tianwei

(appointed on 1st November 2011)

Non-executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors

Except that Mr. Guo Fansheng (Chairman) is the uncle of Mr. Guo Jiang
(Chief Executive Officer), there are no financial, business, family or other
relationships among the members of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications containing the names of the Directors.
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Board Meetings

The Board meets in person or through other electronic means of
communication at least four times every year. At least 14 days’ notice of
all board meetings were given to all Directors (unless waived in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company), who were all given an
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for discussion. The Board
secretary of the Company (the “Board Secretary”) assists the Chairman in
preparing the agenda for the meeting, and ensures that all applicable rules
and regulations regarding the meetings are observed. The meeting agenda
and accompanying board papers are sent to all Directors prior to meetings.

During the financial year ended 31st December 2011, 7 Board meetings
were held and the following is an attendance record of the meetings by each
Director:
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Directors Attendance E= H R
Guo Fansheng 6/6  FAA 6/6
Guo Jiang 6/6 2T 6/6
Guo Bingbing 717 EBkik 717
Li Jianguang 5/7  FEk 5/7
Guo Wei 4/6 = 4/6
Zhang Ke 6/7 KRR 6/7
Xiang Bing 6/7 1B 6/7
Lee Wee Ong 2/2  Lee Wee Ong 2/2
Zhang Tim Tianwei 12 RXE 172
During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss and formulate the “GEEEEFHEEF  ESFUHIEAAT 2 B2
overall strategies of the Company, monitor financial performances and discuss ~ ZRH# Eﬁ?%i}’%%ﬁ&?ﬁﬁii&ﬁﬂ HBZEAE - BREK

the annual and interim results, set annual budgets, as well as discuss and
decide on other significant matters.

The Board Secretary records the proceedings of each Board meeting in detail
by keeping detailed minutes, including all decisions made by the Board
together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if any). Drafts
of board minutes are circulated to all Directors for comments and approval
as soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on request by any Director. All Directors have access
to relevant and timely information at all times as the Chairman ensures that
management will supply the Board and its committees with all relevant
information in a timely manner.
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Delegation by the Board

The Company has set out the respective functions and responsibilities reserved
to the Board and those delegated to management. The Board delegates day-
to-day operations of the Group to executive Directors and senior management
while reserving certain key matters for its approval. The Board is responsible
for the approval and monitoring of the Company’s overall strategies and
policies; approval of business plans; evaluating the performance of the
Company and oversight of management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by directing and supervising
the Company'’s affairs.

Decisions of the Board are communicated to the management through
executive Directors who have attended at board meetings.

Term of Appointment and Re-election

Under the provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should be appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election. Each of the existing non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Li Jianguang, Mr. Guo Wei, Mr. Zhang Ke, Dr. Xiang
Bing, Mr. Lee Wee Ong and Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei was appointed for a fixed
term of one year, subject to rotation and/or re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company, as specified by the Articles of Association of the
Company. Under the provision A.4.2, all directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after their appointment and every director, including those appointed
for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

On 10th November 2006, a special resolution was passed by the shareholders
of the Company to approve the amendments to the Company’s Articles of
Association to ensure compliance with the Code. Pursuant to the amended
provisions of the Articles of Associations of the Company, any Director
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company (in the case of
an addition to the Board), and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To improve transparency and independency, the roles of the Chairman
and the chief executive officer of the Company are segregated and are not
exercised by the same individual.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board functions effectively
and smoothly. In doing so, the Chairman ensures that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established and followed, and that
all Directors are properly briefed and received all relevant information prior to
each meeting.

Mr. Guo Fansheng, who assumes the role of the Chairman, is responsible
for overseeing the implementation of corporate strategies of the Company.
Mr. Guo Jiang, who assumes the role of the chief executive officer of the
Company, is responsible for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the
Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration Committee”)
was established on 20th March 2006. As at 31st December 2011, the
chairman of the committee is Mr. Zhang Ke (independent non-executive
Director) and other members include Mr. Guo Jiang (executive Director),
Mr. Li Jianguang (non-executive Director), Dr. Xiang Bing (independent non-
executive Director) and Mr. Guo Wei (non-executive Director).

During the year, the Remuneration Committee was responsible for
formulating and recommending the Board in relation to the remuneration
policy, determining the remunerations of executive Directors and members
of the senior management of the Company, and reviewing and making
recommendations on the Company’s share option scheme, bonus structure,
provident fund and other compensation-related issues. The Remuneration
Committee consults with the Chairman and/or the chief executive officer of
the Company on its proposals and recommendations.

Prior to the formation of the Remuneration Committee, such duties were
performed by the Board.
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The Remuneration Committee is provided with other resources enabling
it to discharge its duties such as the access to professional advice if and
when necessary. For the financial year ended 31st December 2011, the
Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting. The individual attendance record
of each member is as follows:

FHZE SR RHBINERNBEITERE 8L
ERFBAEERR -BE—T—F+-A=+—H
IFHBFEE  FMEZEeAR—ReH  ZEE%
BB HHEREAT

Members Attendance F& H R
Zhang Ke 171 KR 11
Guo Jiang 171 T 11
Li Jianguang 171 FEk 11
Xiang Bing 171 EE 11
Guo Wei 171 R 11

Full minutes of the Remuneration Committee’s meetings are properly
kept by the Company. In line with practices consistent with meetings
of the Board and other committee meetings, draft and final versions of
Remuneration Committee meeting minutes are circulated to all members of
the Remuneration Committee for comments, approval and record as soon as
practicable after each meeting.

At the meetings of the Remuneration Committee held in the period under
review, the members of the Remuneration Committee have reviewed the
Group’s remuneration policy and discussed the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management for the forthcoming financial year.

The emoluments of the Directors and the management are determined
based on the operating results of the Company, individual performance and/
or prevailing market conditions. The Company has also adopted the Share
Option Scheme as an incentive to Directors and senior management.

In order to comply with the code provision of Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules which will be effective on 1st April 2012, on 20th March 2012, Mr.
Zhang Tim Tianwei (independent non-executive Director) was appointed as a
member of the Remuneration Committee in place of Mr. Li Jianguang (non-
executive Director).

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company did not establish a nomination committee during the year
ended 31st December 2011. The Board is empowered under the Company’s
Articles of Association to appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual
vacancy on or, subject to authorization by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, as an additional member of the Board. Qualified candidates
will be proposed to the Board for consideration and the selection criteria
are mainly based on the assessment of their professional qualifications and
experience. The Board selects and recommends candidates for directorship
having regard to the balance of skills and experience appropriate to the
Group's business.

Mr. Lee Wee Ong has been appointed by the Board as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 9th September 2011 and Mr. Zhang Tim
Tianwei has been appointed by the Board as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 1st November 2011. In accordance with Article 86
of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Lee Wee Ong and Mr. Zhang
Tim Tianwei will be subject to, and eligible offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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On 20th March 2012, the nomination committee of the Company
(“Nomination Committee”) has been established. As at the date of this
report, the chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Guo Fansheng
(executive Director) and other members include Mr. Lee Wee Ong (independent
non-executive Director) and Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei (independent non-
executive Director). The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying individual suitably
qualified to become Board members, selecting or making recommendation
to the Board on selection of individuals nominated for directorship, assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Director and making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Management of the Company provides all relevant information and records to
the Board enabling the Board to make assessment and to prepare the financial
statements and other financial disclosures. In full compliance with Rule 5.28
and 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules, the audit committee of the Company
("Audit Committee”) was established in July 2003 and is currently chaired by
Mr. Zhang Ke, (independent non-executive Director). Other members of the
Audit Committee include Mr. Li Jianguag (non-executive Director) and Mr.
Xiang Bing (independent non-executive Director).

During the year, the Audit Committee’s primary duties include ensuring the
Company’s financial statements, annual and interim reports, and the auditor’s
report present a true and balanced assessment of the Company’s financial
position; reviewing the Company’s financial control, internal control and risk
management systems; and reviewing the Company'’s financial and accounting
policies and practices.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties. For the financial year ended 31st December 2011, the
Audit Committee held 4 meetings. The individual attendance record of each
member is as follows:
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Members Attendance FKE& R E
Zhang Ke 34 RRx 3/4
Xiang Bing 4/4  TEE 4/4
Li Jianguang 4/4  FE¥H 4/4
The Audit Committee has reviewed with management of the Company the HEZZE€DEARREEBEMAEBRMANES
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, the internal control ~ RRIREHEL| - REEREFULAEEHE—T

procedures, the financial results of the Group during the year ended 31st
December 2011 and met with external auditors and discussed the financial
matters of the Group that arose during the course of audit during the year
ended 31st December 2011.
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Full minutes of all Audit Committee meetings are properly kept by the
Company. In line with practices consistent with meetings of the Board and
other committee meetings, draft and final versions of Audit Committee
meeting minutes are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee for
comments, approval and record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

The Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements and the
responsibilities of the external auditors to the shareholders are set out on
pages 47 to 48 of this report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of the
external auditors and reviewing any non-audit function performed by external
auditors, including whether such non-audit functions could lead to any
potential material adverse effect on the Company. During the year ended 31st
December 2011, the Company has paid an aggregate of HK$2,380,000 to
the external auditors as remuneration of audit services.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal control
systems for the Group to safeguard the Company’s assets and shareholders’
interests, as well as for reviewing such systems’ effectiveness. The Board
conducts review of the Company’s internal control systems periodically,
covering financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. In such review, the Board has considered factors such as changes
since the last review; scope and quality of management’s monitoring of
risks; incidence of significant control failings and weaknesses identified; and
effectiveness relating to financial reporting and compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company discloses all necessary information to the shareholders in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The Directors host the annual general
meeting each year to meet the shareholders of the Company and answer
their enquiries (if any). The Directors make efforts to attend annual general
meetings so that they may answer any question raised by the shareholders of
the Company.

The proceedings of the annual general meetings are reviewed from time
to time to ensure the Company conforms to the best practices regarding
corporate governance.

The Company also communicates with its shareholders through its annual,
interim and quarterly reports. The directors, company secretary or other
appropriate members of senior management also respond to inquiries from
shareholders and investors promptly.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 N % BRD R

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HC INTERNATIONAL, INC.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HC International,
Inc. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out
on pages 49 to 128, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31st December 2011, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st December
2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20th March 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Jir e Was

For the year ended 31st December 2011

HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HIFE

2011 2010
—E——fF —T-FF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
et AR¥T T ARBFIT
Continuing operations HEREER
Revenue SHEUTA 5 438,356 317,651
Cost of revenue SHEM AR 22 (67,140) (63,662)
Gross profit EF 371,216 253,989
Other income EHUA 21 9,257 6,076
Selling and marketing expenses SHEMTHEEER 22 (251,251) (177,702)
Administrative expenses 1THE R 22 (87,150) (80,083)
Profit before income tax MR PSR A A A 42,072 2,280
Income tax expense FriSHif sz 24 (9,266) (648)
Profit for the year from continuing operations SBICE T 2 AT E 57 32,806 1,632
Discontinued operations HRIEREREK
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 4% || 4844 % 7& 2 N4 /& 3 F) 25 8,560 6,747
Profit for the year RERZ @A 41,366 8,379
Other comprehensive loss: Efh 2RSS
Currency translation difference BBERER (2,688) (645)
Total comprehensive income for the year, AEEEHEBALLE
net of tax (HERTEIE) 38,678 7,734
Profit attributable to: THA TR -
Equity holders of the Company RARIEREAA 41,205 6,935
Non-controlling interests El2iby -2 161 1,444
41,366 8,379
Total comprehensive income attributable to: THALEEZEIKRALEE
Equity holders of the Company RARE=RFEEA 38,517 6,290
Non-controlling interests IEFE I i = 161 1,444
38,678 7,734
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AEIN=R L GaEy

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #HE-ZT——F+-A=+—HItFE

Note 2011 2010
Hiat —=E——F —E-TF
Earnings per share from continuing and RATERIEE AEN
discontinued operations attributable to BEKSEEBRAL
the equity holders of the Company REEBEESREF
(expressed in RMB per share) (UAEBRAR%YIE)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share %%%$E$‘ L/ (E18)
From continuing operations IR E 27 0.0636 (0.0041)
From discontinued operations RIPREETS 27 0.0159 0.0183
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share BREERT,(EE)
From continuing operations RHEIRE T 27 0.0603 (0.0041)
From discontinued operations IR E TS 27 0.0151 0.0181
The notes on pages 56 to 128 are an integral F562128EMMIEAR
part of these consolidated financial statements. & FtB ISRz ELEIL D ©
Dividends [85) 28 - -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEERSESR

As at 31st December 2011

R_T——F+=-A=+—8H

2011 2010
—E——fF —T-FF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
et AR¥T T ARBFIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Land use rights + i {F F A 6 17,725 18,152
Intangible assets mpAE 7 464 6,731
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NERE 8 178,353 140,468
Investment in an associated company REEERE2IRE 10 - 2,795
Deferred income tax assets BIEFSHEE 19 2,563 1,735
Long term deposits, prepayments and REWES - BARIER
other receivables HAb e RIE 11 48,814 1,749
247,919 171,630
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables FEUBR TR 11 21,582 18,848
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e ENFIEREMEKFE 17 27,380 7,214
Direct selling costs BEREHERA 12 69,477 39,248
Amount due from a related company JE U BE B N B FR T8 13 1,556 981
Amount due from an associated company A€ A NCIP S| 10 - 23,390
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEED 14 254,982 188,424
374,977 278,105
Total assets REE 622,896 449,735
EQUITY &=
Equity attributable to the Company’s AATEEBEA
equity holders bR
Share capital A& X 15 56,884 52,116
Other reserves H it 16 270,485 224,395
Accumulated losses 25EE (54,876) (96,081)
272,493 180,430
Non-controlling interests B2l 14 2,795
Total equity R 272,507 183,225
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEERER

As at 31st December 2011 R-ZZT——F+_-_A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR¥T T AREBET T
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEASHEE 19 8,904 -
8,904 -
Current liabilities nEEE
Trade payables FERTERR 18 2,285 2,262
Accrued expenses and other payables fEETE BB & H AL e 08 18 29,699 50,311
Deferred revenue EIEWA 18 290,820 195,965
Other taxes payable E b ST IE 20 9,783 12,548
Income tax payable JEBRFTISHA 20 8,898 5,424
341,485 266,510
Total liabilities weE 350,389 266,510
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 622,896 449,735
Net current assets REBEEFEE 33,492 11,595
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTHERS 281,411 183,225

The consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 128 were approved by  HF49F 128 EWMAHUEREN T~ —F=A_-+

the Board of Directors on 20th March 2012 and were signed on its behalf. AEESSIETH TIESREESTEEE
GUO lJiang GUO Bingbing
Director Director
BT £ 973
EZE 2

The notes on pages 56 to 128 are an integral part of these consolidated — $#56= 128 BT AA HIERERNBELD -
financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

BERE

As at 31st December 2011

R_T——F+=-A=+—8H

2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Jiot=3 AR¥F T ARBT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZIE 9 1,956 1,956
1,956 1,956
Current assets RBEE
Loan to a subsidiary ERF—RKHMERA 9 228,801 181,986
Other receivables H b el 08 11 117 122
Cash and cash equivalents ReRB2EFED 14 5 5
Total current assets BREEE 228,923 182,113
Total assets BmEE 230,879 184,069
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to the Company’s AATEREZEEA
equity holders FEihER
Share capital f& 7 15 56,884 52,116
Other reserves EH b 16 215,691 166,981
Accumulated losses Z:tHERE 16 (41,997) (35,260)
Total equity R 230,578 183,837
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities RBAE
Accrued expenses and other payables FEETE A KL H b R A 18 301 232
Total liabilities FEN=F ] 301 232
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 230,879 184,069
Net current assets RBEEFRE 228,622 181,881
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBARE 230,578 183,837

The financial statements on pages 49 to 128 were approved by the Board of
Directors on 20th March 2012 and were signed on its behalf.

GUO Jiang
Director
BT
E

The notes on pages 56 to 128 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

GUO Bingbing

Director
oKk
EZE

FAE128EMUBHEN T ——F=-A=-1+HE
EFSWAETH TV ESREREZTSEE -

F56E 128 BT RS HIMBMRAERTD

ZEMERATE - 2011FFR 53



—

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AbHEREBX

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #HE-ZT——F+-A=+—HItFE

Attributable to the Company’s equity holders

KARRRREE A
Non-
Share Other  Accumulated controlling
capital reserves losses Sub-total interests Total
& Hitfts ZitER Pt FERER @t
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
it ARBTE  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETr  ARETT  ARETR
Balance at 1st January 2010 T-ZF-A-Ak4 52,055 265,273 (103,016) 214,312 8,999 223311
Comprehensive income QEH&}\
Profit for the year REREN - - 6,935 6,935 1,444 8379
Other comprehensive loss Hit2EER
Currency translation difference EBEREE 16 - (645) - (645) - (645)
Total comprehensive income 2EHAEE - (645) 6,935 6,290 1,444 7,734
Transactions with owners BREAETZRS
Share based compensation - value of LA %1H 7 (&
employee services —-EEREEE 16 - 7,931 - 7,931 - 7,931
Acquisition of additional interestina  WESME 2 R ME
subsidiary 17 - (48,474) - (48,474) (7,648) (56,122)
Exercise of share options TR 61 310 - 371 - 371
Total transactions with owners ~ REEAETZRZ4E 61 (40,233) - (40,172) (7,648) (47,820)
Balance at 31st December 2010 R-Z-Z%+-A=+-H
e 52,116 224,395 (96,081) 180,430 2,795 183,225
Balance at 1st January 2011 RZZ—F—-R—BEH 52,116 224,395 (96,081) 180,430 2,795 183,225
Comprehensive income EERA
Profit for the year REEHER - - 41,205 41,205 161 41366
Other comprehensive loss Hit2EEE
Currency translation difference EEENER 16 - (2,688) - (2,688) - (2,688)
Total comprehensive income 2EHAEE - (2,688) 41,205 38,517 161 38,678
Transactions with owners BEEARTZRS
Shares purchased under share BERD B EEAZRR
award scheme 16 - (22,234) - (22,234) - (22,234)
Share based compensation - value of A% 2 HiE—(ES
employee services REEE 16 - 6,731 - 6,731 - 6,731
Contribution from non-controlling ~ SERHB AT EL 2
interests on set up of a subsidiary  FHERRERITE - - - - 150 150
Disposal of a subsidiary HEWBAR 29 - - - (3,092) (3,092)
Exercise of share options ﬁ@iﬁ%ﬁﬁé 295 1,806 - 2,101 - 2,101
Issuance of new shares BTER 15 4473 62,475 - 66,948 - 66,948
Total transactions with owners ~ EFEARTZRAAE 4,768 48,778 - 53,546 (2,942) 50,604
Balance at 31st December 2011 W_E—F+-f=1+—H
& 56,884 270,485 (54,876) 272,493 14 272,507

The notes on pages 56 to 128 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EfRERER

For the year ended 31st December 2011 HE—_ZT——F+_A=+—HAIFE

2011 2010
—E——f —E-TF
Note RMB’'000 RMB’'000
izt AR¥TT ARBFT
Cash flows from operating activities REEB-RERE
Cash generated from operations REXBEEZRE® 29(a) 119,986 97,799
Interest received = EIPS) 3,777 2,077
The People’s Republic of China (“PRC") EffhEARKLFE([HE])
income tax paid FriS#t (793) (783)
Net cash generated from operating activities L& XK HERAFE 122,970 99,093
Cash flows from investing activities REZTBHZHRERE
Repayment from an entrusted fund f*ftgﬁz B FrigRIE - 10,000
Loan to a third party BERTE=H 11(b) (25,404) -
Prepayment for land use rights TE S HbfE AR 11(b) (21,600) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment A - BB LB 29(d) (66,093) (77,864)
Purchase of intangible assets BABFEE 7 - (21)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - WE KR
plant and equipment TS 7k18 29(b) 224 75
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary, U BEME A RIFEIMER
including transaction costs (BIER ZKA) 17 - (56,122)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary, L EFTE A B ATIS A (kR
net of cash and cash equivalents disposed of It ERE RRSEEY) 29(c) 12,184 12,418
Net cash used in investing activities RETHZHESRHTFE (100,689) (111,514)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETHZRERE
Issuance of new shares BATEINR D 15 66,948 -
Purchase of shares under share award scheme  1R{EA%(D #€E) =1 2IBE AR (D 15 (22,234) -
Capital contribution from a non-controlling IR R T E
shareholder 150 -
Exercise of share options Gntd e 16 2,101 371
Net cash generated from financing activities BEESH 2 RERAFE 46,965 371
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash e MRS SEYEMN CRD)
equivalents FEE 69,246 (12,050)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning RENZ B2 RBESEED
of the year 188,424 201,119
Exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEMEREE (2,688) (645)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RELR 2R E RIS EEY) 254,982 188,424

The notes on pages 56 to 128 are an integral part of these consolidated — $56Z= 128 B MHiE AA HIIERERNBEL D -

financial statements.
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BTSRRI

GENERAL INFORMATION

HC International, Inc. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) organise a business-to-business community across China
by providing business information through both on-line and offline
channels. The Group operates an on-line market place and provides
industrial search result prioritising services through its business-to
business website “hc360.com”. The Group also publishes its own trade
catalogues and yellow page directories in China.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is the 4th Floor, One Capital
Place, P. O. Box 847, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands,
British West Indies.

The Company has its primary listing on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 20th March 2012.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and under the historical cost convention.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

HC International, Inc - Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B ISR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) (a)

2 FESHBEHBEw

REEE(E)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following new standards and amendments to standards are
mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning 1st
January 2011 that would be expected to have a material impact on
the Group.

HKAS 24 (Revised), “Related Party Disclosures” is effective for
annual period beginning on or after January 2011. It introduces
an exemption from all of the disclosure requirements of HKAS
24 for transactions among government related entities and the
government. Those disclosures are replaced with a requirement to
disclose:

e  The name of the government and the nature of their
relationship;

e  The nature and amount of any individually significant
transactions; and

e The extent of any collectively-significant transactions
qualitatively or quantitatively.

New and amended standards have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning 1st January 2011
and have not been early adopted

FEEERA 2 FaT RASNEETER
UTAR—F——F—A— BB ZHMIEK
FIE B RGBT ERI R AERNERT »
FEREEH A EBEREATE

BRI ERE 245 (BT BB A L
BEIRN T ——F - A2 BABZF
EEREEN - ZEAHR BB GHERSE
AR HAEREABTETRS
ZREWBERE - ZFWER—IBWER
FEHRAL :

o HFRRMEHERMEZIEE

o FMERNEAZRSZHEERSHE

&
. ERMEEEELHBEAIRS
pERE -

WERTHRAR - F——F— A — AR
2R B BRI E A E R L2 RET R
ABIEETER)

Effective for
accounting period
beginning on or after

RT5IBHRKRS

ZENFERBEX

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets 1st July 2011
BRI ERERE 75 (EFT) KE-ESEoREE —T—F+tHA—H
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Severe hyperinflation and removal of fixed dates for first- 1st July 2011

time adopters

EEMBEMEERE15:(ERT) B BB R G B R E 2 [ElE B HA —E——F+tH—H
HKAS 12 (Amendment) Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets 1st January 2012
A ERIE 129 (1BR]) RIERIA - Y EIAEREE —ZE——%—H—H
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of financial statements 1st July 2012
BEETERIE 1R (EET) Edllipyzae —ET——F+tHA—H
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1st January 2013
BRI EREERIEIR EHRIA —E—=F—HA—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B ISR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FES:BEHBE®
POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) (a) mBEE(HE)
New and amended standards have been issued but are not WEIBFERAR = ——F—F— A%
effective for the financial year beginning 1st January 2011 ZEIBEE A E S 5 R 2 FTET R
and have not been early adopted (Continued) AEAEFTER ()

Effective for
accounting period
beginning on or after

RT3 BERKRSR
ZENFERBEENR
HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements 1st January 2013
BBV BIMELE105% SO IRE —E-=%—-H—H
HKAS 27 (revised 2011) Separate financial statements 1st January 2013
ARG ERE275% B BT R —ZT—=%—H—H
(ZZ——FKIEFT)
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements 1st January 2013
BBV BIMELNE 155 HEZHE —ZE-=%—H—H
HKAS 28 (revised 2011) Associates and joint ventures 1st January 2013
EEEETERIE285% YN VN —ZT—=%—H—H
(ZF——FaiE3T)
HKFRS 12 Disclosures of interests in other entities 1st January 2013
BB RERERE125% REAME B a2 PR ER —ZE-—=%—H—H
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurements 1st January 2013
BEVEMELERE 135 NHERE —E—=F—H—H
HKAS 19 (Amendment) Employee benefits 1st January 2013
EEETHERE 195 (IBR]) EERT —T—=F—HA—H
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Financial instruments: 1st January 2013
Disclosures — offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities
BB EERET7R(ERT) SRIA: —E-—=%—-H—H
BE-BHIHEERSREE
HK(IFRIC) 20 Stripping costs in the production 1st January 2013
phase of a surface mine
(R BRERELZES) b 2% B[R A i R ) S R AR —ZT-—=%—H—H
— 58205}
HKAS 32 Financial instruments: 1st January 2014
Presentation — offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities
EE e ERIE325% SRITA: —T-mF—-A—H
EH-HEeREERSRAR
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Mandatory effective date and transition disclosures 1st January 2015
BBV BREEETH R o il A= 28 B B R BB R B —E-RF—-H—H

BRMBIREERFEIR(ER])
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HP R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)
The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact
of these new HKFRS but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new HKFRS would have a significant impact on its results of
operations and financial position.

(b) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to
31st December.

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether the
group controls another entity. The Group also assesses
existence of control where it does not have more than 50%
of the voting power but is able to govern the financial and
operating policies by virtue of de-facto control. De-facto
control may arise from circumstances such as enhanced
minority rights or contractual terms between shareholders,
etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Profits and losses resulting from inter-company transactions
that are recognised in assets are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

2 FESHBEHME

(a)

(b)

REEE(E)
AEEDEFHEZSNE BV RELE

2l

FE LW AREEEZENE L

B HREERS AL BEERY R G
BHREATE -

oy

EHPBRRBIEARAREAENBEL
ABET-_A=1t—HLLZMBEE -

(i)

ol AT

MERREAEE B REZEEMIK
e ERRZMABR(BREEK
BHERE)  —RITHEELER
REREE - A EAKEREE
BB —EREE - BRTAATEEAL
BOEERERNFERZENST
ZR - EAKERE-HEEIR
50% 2 WEERD - BRRSRE
B 42 1) A 1 7T 9 L B IR IR
B EMEFERESFEEGE -
B2 I T A2 D058 D B SR
HEREROGEREBRATESL -

MRAR B EHEERERER
REZEE G - EREHNERILEZ
A&IEAH -

SEARARZHNRS - RPN
RS TIASE - REEERZ
SEARRZHORZ S MESEH
REBTRTIALHE - EBER
& MEARMNETBRED KK
B DAREAR BLR S B PR ER AR RO IR R
REF—2K -
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(b) Consolidation (Continued)

60

()

Subsidiaries (Continued)
Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit
or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as
a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred and the fair value of non-
controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change
of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
— that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

HC International, Inc - Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HP R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(b) Consolidation (Continued)

(o)

(i) Subsidiaries (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries

When the group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associated company, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

(ii) Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

An associated company

The associated company is the entity over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investment in an associated company is accounted for using the
equity method of accounting and is initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s investment in an associated company includes goodwill
identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss.
See note 2(i) for the impairment of non-financial assets including
goodwill.

If the ownership interest in the associated company is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

2 FESTHHER#MEwW

(b) #H&EE)
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HER B A]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HP R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

62

(0

(d)

An associated company (Continued)

The Group’s share of its associated company’s post acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, and its share of post acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of
losses in an associated company equals or exceeds its interest in
the associated company, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associated company.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associated company
is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associated company and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of an associated company’ in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associated
company are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors who make
strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HP R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the
Group's functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the group entities that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

2 FESTHHER#MEwW

(e) HhiaE
() WEREFEH
AEEEBRZMBHRERAEIER
B DERZEBREMEZIEL
HIRBZEE(THe a8 DA E -
EHIBREAARB(TARE]D
25 LEARENEEE -

(i) X5 Rist
INERZ IR 5 AHE 2 [EX
BRERNGEEYE - ARERXFHEE
NIZFE R 2 E XA UINERHE
ZEBEAEREBBMELZINEE
HiEs - IRAGEERERIER -

k9= PAYT
SEETEERNFEHEHERE
BRIt B - HEE R
BIRRGRAT R ERERERE
-

(iii)

)y BEEABREIZEERA
BEEERZEERBRET A
2T R

(i) FUamsz WARRSIERT
1 R E (BRI F I 1 R
R HAHIRITERN R
ENAEOH  EHBERT
WS B BER 5 B HiHE R ik
CORE

(i) FPBELZERZFOEAR
w2 BEIAR -

ZEMERATE - 2011FFR 63



—
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

64

(e)

()

(9)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Group companies (Continued)
Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are reattributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest
in associates or jointly controlled entities that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Land use rights

Land use rights are recorded at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Land use
rights are amortised using the straight-line method over their lease
terms of 50 years.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising buildings, computer
and telecommunications equipment, fixtures, fittings and office
equipment, leasehold improvements and motor vehicles, are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FES:BEHMEw®
POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (9) Y% BRERRZEE)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over its estimated useful lives, at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold improvements

HEMERE

Buildings

BF

Computer and telecommunications equipment
R BARA

Fixtures, fittings and office equipment

FE - HRBRFRER

Motor vehicles

"

The asset residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (note 2(i)).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction or pending installation and is stated at cost less
impairment losses, if any. No provision for depreciation is made
on assets under construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and available for their intended use.
On completion, the relevant assets are transferred to property,
plant and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

ME  BERZEZITEDRBESER
HE T EAER AR AD BREFISHE
B FEOT

Over the lease terms from 2 to 5 years
NFEEFH2E5F
2.3% 5%

20%
20%
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

66

(h)
()

(ii)

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associated
companies and joint ventures and represents the excess of
the consideration transferred over the acquiror’s interest
in net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is
not subsequently reversed.

Software development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development projects relating to the design and testing
of new or improved computer software are recognised as
intangible assets in the consolidated balance sheet where
technical feasibility and intention of completion has been
demonstrated and the resources are available to do so, costs
are identifiable and there is an ability to sell or use the asset
that will generate probable future economic benefits. Such
development costs are recognised as an asset and amortised
on a straight-line basis over a period of 5 years to reflect
the pattern in which the related economic benefits are
recognised.

Development costs that do not meet the above criteria
are expensed as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

(i

()

Intangible assets (Continued)

(iii) Data library
Costs incurred on acquiring the data library are recognised
as an intangible asset where the technical feasibility has been
demonstrated, and there is an ability to sell or to use the
assets that will generate probable future economic benefits.
Such acquisition cost is recognised as an asset and amortised
on a straight-line basis over a period of 10 years to reflect
the pattern in which the related economic benefits are
recognised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group'’s loan and receivables
comprise “trade and other receivables” and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the consolidated balance sheet.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

68

)

(k)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

(U]

(m)

(n)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. If a loan
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument'’s fair value using
an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Direct selling costs

Direct selling costs, which principally are comprised of sales
commissions and agency fees paid in respect of subscription
revenue received in advance, are deferred and are charged ratably
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over
the term of the respective service contracts when the services are
rendered.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

70

(o)

(p)

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
share capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes)
is deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity
holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such
shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net
of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company’s equity holders.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity
directly, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(a)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and the jointly controlled entity,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Retirement benefit costs
The full-time employees of the Group are covered by various
government-sponsored pension plans under which the
employees are entitled to a monthly pension based on certain
formulas.

The relevant government agencies are responsible for the
pension liabilities to these retired employees. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these pension plans. Under
these plans, the Group has no obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made.

Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.

(ii) Bonus entitlements
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled within 12
months and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when they are settled.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(q) Employee benefits (Continued) (@ EEBR(E)
(iii) Share-based compensation (i) LR Z (121

2 FESHERBE®

72

The Group operates equity settled, share-based compensation
plans. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

Under the Share Award Scheme, a director and certain
employees of the Group are entitled to receive shares in
the Company. The shares held under trust by a financial
institution (“Trustee”) for the benefit of the director and
employees, would be paid and the paid up the consideration
would be capitalised in the Company'’s reserves. The Trustee
has been instructed to buy shares from the market using the
funds held by the Trustee to grant shares to the director and
employees.

The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme
under which options may be granted to subscribe for the
Company's shares.

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the share options and shares awarded is
recognised as an expense.

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value of the share
options and shares granted, excluding the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability
and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of shares or
share options that are expected to vest. The total amount
expensed is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions
are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of shares or share options
that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, and a corresponding adjustment to
equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(q) Employee benefits (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(iv) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to
either: terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after balance sheet date are
discounted to present value.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

74

(t)

(u)

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course
of the Group's activities.

Revenue is recognised as follows:

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities as described below. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type
of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

Advertising income from industry portals, trade catalogues, yellow
page directories and printed periodicals is recognised on the date
of publication.

Subscription fee income from on-line services is recognised over the
period of contracts entered with the customers. The unrecognised
portion of contract sum are recognised as deferred revenue.

Revenue from the hosting of trade exhibitions and business
seminars is recognised upon conclusion of the exhibitions or
seminars.

Revenue for market research reports are either recognised using
“percentage of completion method” or recognised over the
contract periods by straight line basis. The stage of completion is
measured by reference to the contract costs incurred up to the
balance sheet date as a percentage of total estimated costs for
each contract.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, using the
effective interest method.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair values
when there is a reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
within “other income” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central finance department
(the “Finance Department”) headed by the Chief Financial Officer
of the Group. The Finance Department identifies and evaluates
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating
units to cope with overall risk management as well as specific areas
such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates in the PRC and majority of its
transactions are denominated in RMB. The Group
has no material foreign currency denominated assets
and liabilities and does not have material exposure on
foreign exchange risk.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

76

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)  Fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from fixed deposit
categorised in “cash and cash equivalents” and loan
to a third party categorised in “other receivables”.
Deposits and loan to a third party received at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. As all of
these deposits are highly liquid, the fair value changes
resulting from the fluctuation of the market interest
rate are insignificant. For loan to a third party, profit
before tax for the year would have been approximately
RMB254,000 higher/lower (2010: Nil) if market interest
rates had been 100 basis point higher/lower, with all
other variables held constant.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The Group's credit
risk mainly arises from cash and cash equivalents, as well as
credit exposures to trade receivables and loan to a third party.
The Finance Department has policies in place to monitor the
exposures to these credit risks on an on-going basis.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that provision
of services is made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic credit evaluations of
its customers.

For balance with a related company and loan to a third party,
management assesses the recoverability of the balances
taking into account the history of default of these companies,
financial performance, fair value of pledge assets and
availability of credit facilities.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BIERMEREG:
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HEEBREZE(E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EmE(E)
The table below shows the credit limit and balance of the five TRETAKEBAR-ZT——F
major debtors as at 31st December 2011 and 31st December TZRE=E+—BRZE-ZTF+=
2010. R=+—HZEERE R -

31st December 2011
—E-——f+=ZA=+—H

Counterparty Credit limit Utilised
HES EERE 2R3z
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARET T

Customer F BPF 1,000 700
Customer G BPG 1,000 567
Customer H BFH 1,000 366
Customer | 48| 1,000 293
Customer J =P 1,000 218

31st December 2010
—E-TF+-_A=+—H

Counterparty Credit limit Utilised
HEn EERE [mAESE]
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMETTT AREETTT

Customer A ZEA 1,000 556
Customer B ZF5B 1,000 404
Customer C BPEC 1,000 320
Customer D ZFED 1,000 293
Customer E ZPE 1,000 279
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HREREEs
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BEREBRE(E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EEEE)
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past RABPNRENEREEZFEE
due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to the =] 2 MR & 77 8 2 #8 R D Bk AT
counterparty’s default history. The table below shows the o TREIIEHWREZIOK(R
trade receivables that have been outstanding for up to 90 BTEPHMEREER) R ENLE
days, the normal credit period granted to customers, and not HARMEZ EWER

impaired as at the balance sheet date.

As at 31st December

R+=A=+—H
2011 2010
=F——F TR
RMB’000 RMB'000

N ARETTT

Trade receivables FEURER SR
Listed customers EWER 409 840
Unlisted customers FEETERF 15,821 13,901
Total w5t 16,230 14,741
The table below shows the cash and cash equivalents held by TREJATRASREEREER
different type of financial institutions at balance sheet date. Frisiie REaSEY -
As at 31st December
WR+=-—B=+—H
2011 2010
—F——F L
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARET T
Cash at banks and bank deposits RITIH S RIRTTHEK
Listed financial institutions T R 245,557 175,133
Unlisted financial institutions JEETH S BhikrE 7,906 12,063
Cash on hand B 1,519 1,228
Total st 254,982 188,424
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMKEERKREE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HEEBREZE(E)
(c) Liquidity risk () WEELERE
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, HREAEBNSEINE - KEH
the Group maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining FREREEBREFFZMEE A
sufficient cash from operating activities. HIRESEEN -
As at 31st December 2011, the cash and cash equivalents RZT——F+=ZA=+—H ' &
of the Group approximated RMB254,982,000 (2010: FERERREFEMHORAR
RMB188,424,000). #254,982,000L( — T —FF : A
[R#188,424,0007T) °
The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into TRIBELAEHZESNIBHAZH
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period THEEAEESREERBRAE
from the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity BRAERIDHT - REFEENSE
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual BRFARBERE ©
undiscounted cash flows.
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 2and5 Over
1year years years 5 years Total
15R 122% 285% S5ENE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
At 31st December 2011 RZZ——F+-F=+-H
Trade payables FERTEER 2,285 - - - 2,285
Accrued expenses and BB REMENFE
other payables 29,661 - - - 29,661
At 31st December 2010 RZZ-FF+-F=+-H
Trade payables FERTEER 2,262 - - - 2,262
Accrued expenses and [ ER R AR R
other payables 50,126 - - - 50,126
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

80

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis based on a ratio calculated
by dividing short-term loan by total equity (excluding non-
controlling interests). Management considers a ratio of not more
than 20% as reasonable. The gearing ratio for the Group is 0%
(2010: 0%) as no debt is outstanding as at 31st December 2011
(2010: Nil).

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over and above
balance required for working capital management are transferred
to interest bearing current accounts and time deposits, with
appropriate maturities to manage its overall liquidity position.
As at 31st December 2011, the Group maintains cash and
cash equivalents of approximately RMB254,982,000 (2010:
RMB188,424,000), that are expected to be readily available to
meet the cash outflows of its financial liabilities.

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and liabilities
including cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
trade payables, accruals and other payables, amount due from a
related company, and amount due from an associated company
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Provision for impairment of receivables
Significant judgement is exercised in the assessment of the
collectability of trade and other receivables from each debtor. In
making its judgement, management considers a wide range of
factors such as results of following procedures performed by sales
personnel, customers’ payment record and subsequent settlements.

(b) Taxes

The Group is subject to taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for various kinds
of taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
period in which such determination is made.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified
as the executive directors. The executive directors review the Group'’s
internal report in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The CODM considers the business from product perspective. From a
product perspective, the CODM assesses the performance of trade
catalogues and yellow page directories, on-line services, market research
and analysis and seminars and other services.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based
on a measure of profit/(loss) before tax. This measurement basis excludes
other income and the effects of non-recurring expenditure from the
operating segments.

As at 31st December 2011, the Group is organised into the following
business segments:

(i)  On-line services, which generates subscription fee income by
provision of a reliable platform to customers to do business and
meet business partners on-line.

(i)  Trade catalogues and yellow page directories, which generates
advertising income by provision of trade information through trade

catalogues and yellow page directories published by the Group.

(i) Market research and analysis, which provides business information
and analysis services.

(iv)  Seminars and other services, which provides hosting services of
seminars.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 HEER @
There were no sales or other transactions between the business HE_T——F+A=1+—HILFE &%
segments for the year ended 31st December 2011. Bz ML MmEHEREMZ S -

Year ended 31st December 2011
HE-Z-—-5+-B=t-HLEE

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BERERY RIERERH
Trade
catalogues
and yellow Seminars Market
On-line page  and other research
services  directories services Total and analysis Total
IH%A% 3 HERR
ERPRE REEEE  AftKH At kAt @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR ARBTR ARRTR ARETR  ARETR

Revenue HEWA 289,581 82,289 66,486 438,356 55,376 493,732
Segment results PEEE 53,643 (28,087) 7,259 32,815 11,637 44,452
Other income HipA 9,257 - 9,257
Profit before income tax BAER AR 42,012 11,637 53,709
Other information: HipgH -
Depreciation and amortisation (including ~ #7% %34 (R EAR L A

share based compensation expense) Ef7BERR) 19,365 3,537 131 24,213 736 24,949
Share on profit from an PEEE D FET

associated company - - - - 2,390 2,390
Pre-tax profit on disposal of MERHEEEK L

discontinued operations HAnaH - - - - 7,891 7,891
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(9]
N

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (c 2 EBE R )

ontinued)

Year ended 31st December 2010

84

HECZ-ZE+-A=T-HILEE
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
FREEEEH BILEERT
Trade
catalogues
and yellow Seminars Overseas Market
On-line page and other E-Commerce research
Services directories services Total Services and analysis Total
IE%EH EES BIHET [iEiE
EEARE  REEEH Hth i fat EHRE kot st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Revenue HEWA 164,412 101,437 51,802 317,651 2,005 71475 391,131
Segment results P 4,49 (9,738) 1,446 (3,79) 9,711 (1,529 4,386
Other income Hig A 6,076 44 - 6,120
Profit before income tax BREFERANER 2,280 9,755 (1,529) 10,506
Other information: EfAH
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH(AEURY
(including share based BEEZBERS)
compensation expense) 18,991 3,065 374 22,430 1,535 579 24,544
Share on profit from an HEEEREER
associated company - - - - - 1,287 1,287
Pre-tax profit on disposal of HERHEEEH L
discontinued operations HArgA - - - - 12,585 - 12,585
The Group is domiciled in the PRC. The revenue from external customers REEEHNTE BE_T——F+=

from continuing and discontinued operations in the PRC for the year
ended 31st December 2011 is approximately RMB493,732,000 (2010:
RMB391,131,000), and the total revenue from external customers from

other countries is Nil (2010: Nil).

As at 31st December 2011, the total non-current assets other than
financial instruments and deferred tax assets (there were no employment
benefit assets and rights arising under insurance contracts) located in
the PRC is approximately RMB196,542,000 (2010: RMB168,146,000),
and the total of these non-current assets located in other countries is Nil

(2010: Nil).
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6 LAND USE RIGHTS - GROUP 6 TiFRAE-—KEH
The Group’s interests in land use rights in the PRC represent prepaid AREE R B L A 2 R B TE AR R 504
operating lease payments with a lease period of 50 years and their net ZHEMEERHES - EEEmFESTOT

book value is analysed as follows:

2011 2010

—E——fF —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T ARBFTT

Opening net book amount FHREFE 18,152 18,579

Amortisation B8y (427) (427)

Closing net book amount FIERENFE 17,725 18,152

Cost AR 21,324 21,324

Accumulated amortisation Rt (3,599) (3,172)

Closing net book amount FIREREFE 17,725 18,152

Amortisation of the Group's land use rights is included in administrative AEE L FEREZBETAGHGEAEKRGER
expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. ZATHERA °

2011 2010

=F——F —TFF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETT ARETIT

Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBAIME TSI HERFE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years FAEAN T 102504 17,725 18,152
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7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP 7 BREE-FXKE
Software
Goodwill development Data library Total
BE BpaE HiEE et
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETL ARBTET ARETT ARBTE

At 1st January 2010 R-E-Z5—-A—H
Cost BN 167 26,683 21,986 48,836
Accumulated amortisation and ZETEE O E

impairment - (23,738) (14,291) (38,029)
Net book amount BREFE 167 2,945 7,695 10,807

Year ended 31st December 2010 #HE—ZE—E&+=fA

=+—BLFE

Opening net book amount FHREEEE 167 2,945 7,695 10,807
Additions NE - 21 - 21
Amortisation (a) BH(a) - (798) (2,199) (2,997)
Disposals of a subsidiary (note 29(c)) H&EHE A & (KtzE29(c)) - (1,100) - (1,100)
Closing net book amount FIREEEEE 167 1,068 5,496 6,731
At 31st December 2010 R-Z2-ZF+-A=+—H
Cost AR 167 25,409 21,986 47,562
Accumulated amortisation and RETEHEREE

impairment - (24,341) (16,490) (40,831)
Net book amount BRELFE 167 1,068 5,496 6,731

Year ended 31st December 2011 HBE—TE——F+=8

=t+—RLFE

Opening net book amount FEYEREEFEE 167 1,068 5,496 6,731
Amortisation (a) i 3=C)] - (604) (2,015) (2,619)
Impairment BE - - (3.481) (3,481)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 29(c)) & HKIE 2 7] (FE29(c)) (167) - - (167)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE - 464 - 464
At 31st December 2011 R-_B——F+=-A=+—8
Cost (BN 167 25,409 21,986 47,562
Accumulated amortisation and ZETEHELAE

impairment (167) (24,945) (21,986) (47,098)
Net book amount SRENFE - 464 - 464
(@) Amortisation of intangible assets is included in administrative () EREEZEHETAAHERAEKRERZIT

expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. HEANA -
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BTSRRI

8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 8 ¥#*¥ - BMERRE-—LEE

Computer Fixtures,
and telecom- fittings and
Construction munications office Leasehold Motor
in progress Buildings  equipment  equipment improvements vehicles Total
ElRk %E #ER
RRIE B¥ EfRE BARE HENREE RE @it

RMBOOO  RMBO0D  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR  ARRTRE  ARETT  ARBTL  ARETR  ARETR

At 1st January 2010 W=%-85-A-A
Cost AR 12,395 40,388 74,726 10,989 5178 706 144,382
Accumulated depreciation ZiiE - (11.922) (55,061) (9,804) (2,463) (703) (79.953)
Net book amount REFE 12,395 28,466 19,665 1,185 2,715 3 64,429
Year ended BE-3-%8f%
31st December 2010 +ZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FRESE 12,395 28,466 19,665 1,185 2715 3 64,429
Additions NE 39,684 40,571 5997 3,724 419 - 90,395
Disposals HE - - (20) 6) - - (26)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 29(c) it E—FIMERR (Fi:29(0) - - (1,072) - (69) - (1,141)
Transfers g2 (46,858) 46,858 - - - - -
Depreciation (a) @) - (2,629) (9,108) (656) (794) 3 (13,189)
Closing net book amount EHERFE 5,221 113,267 15,462 4,247 2,271 - 140,468
At 315t December 2010 R=ZE-E5+-A=1-H
Cost AR 5221 1213817 76,810 14,434 5490 706 230,478
Accumulated depreciation ZihE - (14,550) (61,348) (10,187) (3,219 (706) (90,010)
Net book amount REFE 5221 113,267 15,462 4,247 2271 - 140,468
Year ended BE-E-—-%
31st December 2011 TZA=t-HLEEE
Opening net book amount FNRREE 5,221 113,267 15,462 4,247 2,271 - 140,468
Additions RE - 32,561 8,966 3,907 867 7,261 53,562
Disposals e - - (62) 27 - (37) (126)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 29(c)) i E—FHERAR (H29(0) - - (352) 27 - - (379)
Transfers iz (4,478 4,478 - - - - -
Depreciation (a) &) - (6,499) (6,634) (983) (890) (166) (15172)
Closing net book amount FREAFE 743 143,807 17,380 M7 2,248 7,058 178 353
At 31st December 2011 RZB--%+-A=1-A
Cost KA 743 164,856 81,108 15,439 6,337 7,930 276,413
Accumulated depreciation ESEi - (21,049) (63,728) (8322) (4,089) (872) (98,060)
Net book amount BEFE 743 143,807 17,380 17 2,248 7,058 178,353
(a) Depreciation of RMB1,053,000 (2010: RMB803,000) is included (a) ITEAREE,053,0000(ZE—FF : A
in selling and marketing expenses; and RMB14,119,000 (2010: R #803,0007T) K& A R #14,119,0007T
RMB12,386,000) in administrative expenses in the consolidated (ZZE—ZF : AR¥12,386,0007T) 5 5l
statement of comprehensive income. FIAGHRERER ZIHERTIBHES

REITHRERA -
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9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND LOANTO 9 RHEBARZBRERERTHE
Gl

A SUBSIDIARY - COMPANY AR —ARAE
2011 2010

—F-—F —T-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETTT

Investments, unlisted shares, at cost (a) A IE TR - TN (a) 1,956 1,956

Loan to a subsidiary (b) ERTHEBATD0) 228,801 181,986

230,757 183,942

(a) The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December (@ UFARRZZ——F+ZA=+—HFEZE
2011: MEARZEES

Particulars of issued share

Place of incorporation Nature of business and capital/paid-up share capital/ Effective
Name and kind of legal entity place of operation debt securities interest held
MR ER BRTRA/BERE/
% EEERER ERMEREEBY ERRSEFE FFERELR
' Hong Kong Huicong International  British Virgin Islands, limited  Investment holding in 21,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
Group Limited ("HKHC") liability company Hong Kong of US$0.01 each
| EERERREEARAR RERZME  BRAR  REEKR-FE 21,000,000 & fi%
(I&#E58]) EH0.015% T2 SR
China Media Network International  British Virgin Islands, limited  Investment holding in 50,000 ordinary shares 100%
Inc. liability company Hong Kong of US$1 each
RBRUEE  BRAT  REER-BE 50,0008 B REEI XL
el
I REREREAERAT The PRC, limited liability Provision of business RMB110,000,000 100%
company information in the PRC
P BRAR RUEEEA—PE AK#110,000,0007
FRBREBESEMARAT  The PRC, limited liability Provision of business RMB 10,000,000 100%
company information in the PRC
hE - BRARF REBEEAH - THE K 10,000,000
EREARERIER AR The PRC, limited liability Provision of business RMB10,000,000 100%
company information in the PRC
e BRAR RUBMEER—PHE AR#10,000,0007T
IRERBARBARAR The PRC, limited liability Provision of business RMBS5,000,000 100%
company information in the PRC
P BRAR REEEEA—PE ARH5,000,0007C
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9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND LOANTO 9 HRMIBARIZEREREFTTFHE
A SUBSIDIARY - COMPANY (Continued) YNGRl /N IE
(a) (Continued) (@) (&)

Particulars of issued share

Place of incorporation Nature of business and capital/paid-up share capital/ Effective

Name and kind of legal entity place of operation debt securities interest held
ML ER BERITREHERE,/
2% EEEBRER ERHERCEHY BERESHE P ERER
TRREREEARAT The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMB500,000 100%
company
HE - BRAT BEE—HE AEH#500,0007T
EEEERS(ER)BRAR The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMB2,000,000 100%
company
HE - BRAT BE—HE AEH2,000,0007T
HEREEFERERAR The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMBS5,000,000 100%
company
HE - ARAT [EE—HE ARH5,000,0007T
LEREREESERAR The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMB1,000,000 100%
company
HE - BRAT EE—HE AEH1,000,0007T
LEERRRESEMBERAR  The PRC, limited liability Provision of business RMB1,000,000 100%
company information in the PRC
HE - ARAT RUEFEEA—FE AEH1,000,0007T
HREERREEEERAR The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMB500,000 100%
company
HE - ARAT EE—HE ARH#500,0007T
MMNERESEERAF The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMB1,000,000 100%
company
HE - BRAT EE—HE AEH1,000,0007T
EBNTEREERSER AT The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMB1,500,000 100%
company
HE - BRAT BE—HE AEH1,500,0007T
BNEEREREERAR The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMBS5,000,000 100%
company
HE - ARAT EE—HE ARH5,000,0007T
EffmREREEERAR The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMB500,000 100%
company
HE - BRAT EE—HE AEH#500,0007T
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9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND LOANTO 9 HRHIBAGIZEREREFTTFHE
A SUBSIDIARY - COMPANY (Continued) YNET Rl /N IE
(a) (Continued) (@) (&)

Particulars of issued share

Place of incorporation Nature of business and capital/paid-up share capital/ Effective

Name and kind of legal entity place of operation debt securities interest held
SR A S i B R BRTREBERE/
% EEERER ERMEREEHY ERRSEFE s ERER
ATREREEERAR The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMB2,000,000 100%
company
el BRAR EE-TE AR #2,000,0007C
A TEERESERAR The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMB1,000,000 100%
company
e BRAR EE-F AK#1,000,0007T
BEeERREEERAA The PRC, limited liability Advertising in the PRC RMB500,000 100%
company
hE - BRAR EE—TE AKH500,0007T
BEREREEEITER AR The PRC, limited liability Provision of business RMB1,500,000 100%
company information in the PRC
el BRAR REEEEA P AR #1,500,0007
2 RBREERBBERAA The PRC, limited liability Web design in the PRC RMB500,000 70%
company
e BRAR BEF - AR#500,0007
? BREMNSBMEREABRARF  The PRC, limited liability Provision of business RMB500,000 100%
company information in the PRC
hE - BRAR REEEEN-—HE AR#500,0007T
1 Shares held directly by the Company. 1 R BARAREERS °

2 This company is newly incorporated during the year. 2 ZATRRFENIEMKL -
(b) Loan to a subsidiary (b)
The loan to a subsidiary is denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The carrying
value of this balance approximates its fair value.

ERTHEAR
RTHBRARZEFABTIHE - RER
o RENREBBEREE - ZFHRRZIR
HEEEENFEES -
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B HP R

10 INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY - 10 REZE N R zEs —4AEH

GROUP
(a) Investmentin an associated company (a) REBEATZRE
2011 2010
—EB——F —E-TF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARBTT AREETIT

At 1st January R—HA—H 2,795 1,508
Share of net profit (note 25) DAREER(B7E25) 2,390 1,287
Disposal of an associated company HERE AR (5,185) -
At 31st December Rt+-_A=+—H - 2,795
Interests in an associated company as at 31st December 2011 RZB——FTA=1T—08 KE&ERQ
include goodwill of RMB Nil (2010: RMB220,000). Al R (BEEBIRZE(ZE—ZF
AR¥220,0007T) °
(i) The amount represents the Group's interest in an associated () ZeTEHEENAEEREE QAL
company, Beijing D&B HuiCong Market Research Co., Ltd. REAKEBRTISES ?ﬁ“ﬁﬂﬁfﬁ’&
(“Sales JV Co."). AI([HEEERE ) 2w
Sales JV Co. was incorporated in the PRC, which was disposed HEAZ2ARNPHBETME L
of by the Group during the year ended 31st December 2011, AEEREBEZE_T——F+=A
for details of the disposal, please refer to note 25. =+—HIEFE  HEHERER
A AEEENFE - H2HME
25 ¢
Below represents the revenue of Sales JV Co. shared by the TRINFAEER _ZE——F+=
Group for the year ended 31st December 2011. R=+—BohEEaE R AIZH
EUA o
The Group no longer shared the net assets of Sales JV Co. RZZT——FNALE®R  ~EEH
upon the disposal in September 2011. THAMGHESENRNEEFE
Name Assets Liabilities Revenue % Interest held
FrisfEs
=g BE aE SHEWA Aok
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETTT ARETTT

(Beijing D&B HuiCong Market Research 2011
Co., Ltd.) (“Sales JV Co.") g
N/A N/A
TEA TEA 31,422 40%
I RE A REBEMSE SN 2010
BRAR( HEEERA]) —B-EF
20,620 15,905 33,442 40%
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10 INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY - 10 RE&E AR zER - FAKE8#)

GROUP (Continued)

(b) Amount due from an associated company (b) FEUREEE N TFIE
Amount due from an associated company was unsecured, interest YW E R RERBEERLEE - I
free, and with a credit period of 90 days. The carrying value of MEIOXREER - 2B REERR
this amount approximated its fair value. After the disposal of the RNFERE - HE-—RBEQFIE - K
associated company, the balance due from the associated company EEEREE AR RIERECREAEM
is recorded as other receivables. As at 31st December 2011, EUWFHIE RZE——F+ZA=+—
the balance due from Sales JV Co. amounted to approximately H - BUGEE S E R AINEROAARE
RMB7,099,000. 7,099,0007T °

11 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 11 EBWERR %&£  AIRERH

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES b FE LR 7R IE
Group Company
AEH b N
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B——f | ZT-TF | ZB-——F | ZT-ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTR | ARBTT | ARBTR | ARETT
Trade receivables (note a) FEU AR (P 5Ea) 24,928 20,865 - -
Less: provision for impairment of Ji  FEURBRIN Z R B B
trade receivables (3,346) (2,017) - -
Trade receivables — net FEUAR TR — 558 21,582 18,848 - -
Deposits, prepayments and other Re - TERRE R E R
receivables (note b) WokaE (i Eb) 76,194 8,963 117 122
97,776 27,811 117 122
Less: Non-current deposit, B IEREES TR
prepayments and other T8 2 EAth fE YR IE
receivables (48,814) (1,749) - -
Current portion BNERFL 5> 48,962 26,062 117 122
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11 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 11 EWERR &€  BAFERHE
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 1t PEUR SR I8 ()
(Continued)
(a) The Group generally grants a credit period of 90 days to customers. (@) AEEH-—RHETHEFIOKREEY - &

The aging analysis of the gross trade receivables is as follows:

WERFR AR Z BREC A MTAOT -

Group

FEE
2011 2010
—F——F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETTT

Current to 90 days BNEfZ90K 16,230 14,741
91 to 180 days 91E180Kk 3,607 2,912
181 to 365 days 181F365K 3,490 2,388
Over 1 year iR —F 1,601 824

24,928 20,865

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair
values.

Balances are denominated in RMB and there is no concentration
of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group has a
large number of customers nationally dispersed.

The Group has recognised a loss of approximately RMB1,559,000
for the impairment of its trade receivables during the year ended
31st December 2011 (2010: RMB618,000).

As at 31st December 2011, trade receivables of approximately
RMB3,346,000 (2010: RMB2,017,000) were impaired and have
been provided for. The individually impaired receivables mainly
represent sales made to customers which have remained long
overdue.

FEWBR TR0 BRI (B B H X P EARE -

MEUAREE AR AEEHEARS
BEE AR ERM - SARE L EKER
FUBEEEEDAR -

BE-_Z——+_A=+—RH1L=E
B AEECHEREBRTOREEIBL
AR#1,559,000 (=2 —ZF : AR
618,0007T) °

R-Z——&+-fA=+—8 " BUIER
P AREES 346,000 C(ZF—FF : AR
#£2,017,0007T) B R EILEREAE BB
ENEBFRIBEZRAEFHE mREAXR
TRRIA -
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B HP IR

DEPOSITS,

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

As at 31st December 2011, trade receivables of approximately
RMB5,352,000 (2010: RMB4,107,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. The aging analysis of
these trade receivables is as follows:

11 BRERER RS AARERA
tb P WKL RRIE ()

(@ (&)

R-Z——&F+-A=+—8  BUIER
HAREES,352,0000(ZF—FF : AR
#4,107,0007T) BB B RFE - ZFHR
FEZEEURFPEE - HERAEE
Riosk o ZERMERRZ REDITAT ¢

2011 2010

=F——F TR

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT T ARBFT

91 to 180 days 91E180K 3,607 2,912
181 to 365 days 181F 365K 1,745 1,195
5,352 4,107

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables are
as follows:

MR R ERBEBIT

2011 2010

= T

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T ARETTT

At beginning of the year F4) 2,017 4,445
Impairment of receivables U EIERE 1,559 618
Write off for impaired receivables JE S R IE R i 8 (230) (3,046)
At end of the year F 3,346 2,017

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have
been included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally
written off when there is no expectation of recovering additional
cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables includes
a provision for impairment of other receivables amounted to
approximately RMB2,284,000.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the

fair values of trade receivables disclosed above. The Group did not
hold any collateral as security.
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BTSRRI T

11 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 11 EBWERR &€ - BARERH

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES fth FEUR SR IE ()
(Continued)
(b) Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (b) #®E - AARERHEMERRE
Group Company
rEE PN
2011 2010 2011 2010

—g——f | —T-TF | —8——F | —2-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARETE | ARBTR | ARKTR

Short-term deposits MERe 2,960 1,389 - -
Long-term deposits RHZE 1,810 1,749 - -
Short-term prepayments RERTEM A 16,287 3,710 - -
Long-term prepayments REATER A 21,600 - - -
Other receivables HAtb e GRIA
— Amount due from a third party — EUERTEHAR AT —%4

OEREEHRIARAT), FERRFBELE=F

formerly held by a major (At REZZEHRIBR

shareholder of the Company RNAE)ZFIA - 520 - -
- Short-term others — R HRE A 8,133 1,595 117 122
- Long-term others (Note (7)) — REAHEAD (FH () 25,404 - - -

76,194 8,963 117 122

The fair values are as follows: BRAAFELT :

Deposits oo 4,770 3,138 - -
Prepayments TEfTFRIB 37,887 3,710 - -
Other receivables HAb fEGRIE 33,537 2,115 117 122
76,194 8,963 117 122
Denominated in: ARSI S HEETHE -

HK dollar BT 117 122 117 122
RMB AR 76,077 8,841 - -
76,194 8,963 117 122
Note (i): This amount represents loan receivable from a private company BEEE() © e EEARK— R T B2
incorporated in the PRC. The borrower is one of the new FLARRIER - &7 /EHETHH
shareholders of the disposed market research and analysis business RERDTEBHER —BHRER LK
who is an independent third party of the Company. The loan will RNRABUE=F - ZERRBWE -

mature in 2 years and bears an interest at 8% per annum. WHRF FE8% TS ©
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12 DIRECT SELLING COSTS - GROUP 12 HEHERES -FKKE
Upon the receipt of subscription revenue from third party customers, BUGEZE=A8P 2elBI AR - NEBERE
the Group is obligated to pay sales commissions and agency fees to the EEMEEERABEINEEAERAEE
salespersons and agents. The subscription revenue are initially deferred A o AT AN 25 AR 70 12 AR 7% BRFE 72
and recongised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income SO R RTER o Fit - RS B BRER
in the period during which the services are rendered. Accordingly, the BB AMEEEE A AREERREL
commissions and agency fees, which are directly attributable to earning WHRREAE & PR & I am R TR o

from such subscription revenue during the service period, are deferred
and recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
throughout the same period.

13 AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY - 13 FEWEHABFIE-FEH

GROUP
2011 2010
—E2——F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREFT
Amount due from a related company: FEURRRE A RIFUA ¢
I REBRERESHAEGRAF IRERERELEANBRAF 1,556 981
The amount due from a related company arose from the normal course JEM BAESE N RIFIR TN B RSB E A~
of business and is denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest-free and WAAREESE - AEER  RERERKE
repayable on demand. This related party has no default history. The oo RER A TR R o ARBFTRHE
carrying value of this balance approximates its fair value. BREEEE N TERE ©
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14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 14 ReRkRELEEY
Group Company
rEE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F | ZT-%F | 28— | ZT-%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTT | ARBTR | ARKETT
Cash at bank and on hand RITREFRE 223,549 167,080 5 5
Fixed deposits THITFR 31,433 21,344 - -
254,982 188,424 5 5
Denominated in: A TOEHEHE
— HKD — BT 7,289 4,564 - -
- RMB — AR 245,494 169,445 - -
- UsD —%7T 2,199 14,415 5 5
254,982 188,424 5 5
The fixed deposits were highly liquid with original maturities of three THERASRBE  MARINHER=MA
months or less. As at 31st December 2011, cash and cash equivalents FUA e RZE——F+ZA=1+—H &&
of approximately RMB243,980,000 (2010: RMB168,221,000) of the A REERFEAREERBTHRS K
Group were denominated in Renminbi and deposited with banks in the ReFBEDRR/ARE243,980,00070(=ZF—
PRC. The conversion of the Renminbi denominated balance into foreign T ARM168,221,0007T) © BILFUAR
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange KA ERNASRRIBL IR RINEAZ R RBT A
control promulgated by the PRC government. AR B INE & 147 B S AR BUPTARBR. ©
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the RettRengrkcRe RBRSEMNOT

consolidated cash flow statement:

Group

FEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB‘000

ARB T ARETTT

Cash and bank balances BE NIRTTES 254,982 188,424
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15 SHARE CAPITAL 15 R

Number of
ordinary shares Par value
ZEREE HE
RMB’000
ARBFIT

At 1st January 2010 and 31st December 2010 R-ZE—ZF—F—HK

—E-TF+_-_A=+—H 488,878,960 52,116
Exercise of share options 1T AR 3,560,000 295
Issuance of new shares BATHIRD 53,809,685 4,473
At 31st December 2011 RZTB——F+=-A=+—H 546,248,645 56,884

98

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 1,000,000,000 shares
(2010: 1,000,000,000 shares) with a par value of HK$0.1 per share
(2010: HK$0.1 per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

During the year, the Company has allotted and issued a total number of
53,809,685 new shares, at the subscription price of HK$1.5 to Talent
Gain Developments Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and an independent third party.

Share options

(i) Pursuant to a written resolution of the shareholders of the
Company dated 30th November 2003, a pre-IPO share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by
the Company. Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the
board of directors is authorised to grant options to any directors or
employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe
for shares in the Company at prices to be determined by the board
of directors in accordance with the terms of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

Each option under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme has a 10-
year exercisable period, which may be exercised after the expiry of
twelve months from the date on which trading in the shares of the
Company first commenced on GEM, being 17th December 2003
("Listing Date”). Commencing from the first, second and third
anniversaries of the Listing Date, the relevant grantee may exercise
options up to 33.3%, 66.6% and 100% respectively. No additional
share options were granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme during the year.
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15 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Share options (Continued)
(ii) Pursuant to a written resolution of the shareholders of the

Company dated 30th November 2003, a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme"”) was adopted by the Company. Pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors is authorised to
grant options to any directors or employees of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the Company at prices
to be determined by the board of directors in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme.

During the year ended 31st December 2004, a total of 26,000,000
share options were granted to two executive directors and
certain employees pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, of
which 7,850,000, 9,350,000, 1,080,000, 581,000, 265,000 and
245,000 share options were lapsed during the year ended 31st
December 2005, 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011, respectively.
The grantees can exercise these options at an exercise price of
HK$2.40 per share in a ten-year period starting from the expiry
of twelve months from the date of the granting of options, being
18 February 2004. Commencing from the first, second and third
anniversaries of the Offer Date, the relevant grantee may exercise
options up to 33.3%, 66.6% and 100% respectively.

During the year ended 31st December 2006, a total of 10,000,000
share options were granted to one executive Director and certain
employees pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, of which
2,460,000, 2,908,000, 346,000, 644,000 and 274,000 share
options were lapsed during the year ended 31st December 2007,
2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011 respectively. The grantees can exercise
100% of these options at an exercise price of HK$1.49 per share
in ten years period starting from the expiry of twelve months from
the date of the granting of options, being 23rd June 2006.
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15 BA&R)
BREE)

(i)

BREADRRER-ZE=F+—FA=+
RZERRZER - ARRRA—IABE
sHEI([REAERT 8l ]) - RIBBAUERTE -
ERRBERARASEEFMERS
ERNESRNERE - REEAER
BRI MERSEENERRER
RERBL

REBEZE-_ZTNF+-_A=+—HBLF
- IRIEBRER S - & 2£26,000,000
MEREEETFTRENTEERITHE
T f#A7,850,00013 + 9,350,00017
1,080,00017 ~ 581,0007 ~ 265,00013 K
245,000 ERER D RIREEZ-TZTH
FZEBEELFE L _BEENFE L ZEE
g ZZ—ZFFR-F——F+=A
=+ —BHIEFERRR - AEATTRER
ERLBHEN_ETMFE A+ N\B)%E
+EAEMABZ TFEAR - LAEAR2.40
BITOITEETEZSERE - #RE
BHizE—  F_LEZRFE 56
ERARZ A D RITT{E33.3% * 66.6% &
100% 2 BE AR HE -

REBEEZZERF+-A=+—BLHF
E - RIRERES 2 - 5 210,000,000
DEREEE T 2RTESRINE
T mE2,460,0001)  2,908,0001)
346,00019  644,00013 % 274,00017 H A%
EEREBEE-ZTT+F  _TTN\F - =
TThF  ZT—TFERZT—F+=
A=+—HIEFENRR - FRARRE
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15 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Share options (Continued)

100

(ii)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2007, a total of 23,000,000
share options were granted to two executive Directors and
certain employees pursuant to Share Option Scheme, of which
10,267,000, 1,035,000, 2,403,000 and 668,000 share options
were lapsed during the year ended 31st December 2008, 2009,
2010 and 2011 respectively. During the year ended 31st December
2011, 260,000 share options were exercised. The grantees can
exercise these options at an exercise price of HK$1.24 per share
in ten years period starting from the expiry of twelve months
from the date of the granting of options, being 11th July 2007.
Commencing from the first and second anniversaries of the Offer
Date, the relevant grantee may exercise options up to 50% and
100% respectively.

During the year ended 31st December 2008, a total of 14,600,000
share options were granted to one executive director and certain
employees pursuant to Share Option Scheme, of which 500,000,
1,180,000 and 120,000 share options were lapsed during the
year ended 31st December 2009, 2010 and 2011 respectively.
During the year ended 31st December 2010 and 2011, 700,000
and 2,300,000 share options were exercised. The grantees can
exercise these options at an exercise price of HK$0.604 per share
in ten years period starting from the expiry of twelve months from
the date of the granting of options, being 29th September 2008.
Commencing from the first anniversary of the Offer Date, the
relevant grantee may exercise options 100%.
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15 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Share options (Continued)

(ii)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2010, a total of 33,800,000
share options were granted to one executive Director and certain
employees pursuant to Share Option Scheme, of which 700,000
and 400,000 share options were lapsed during the year ended
31st December 2010 and 2011 respectively. During the year ended
31st December 2011, 1,000,000 share options were exercised. The
granters can exercise these options at an exercise price of HK$0.82
per share in ten years period starting from the expiry of twelve
months from the date of the granting of options, being 7th April
2010. Commencing from the first and second anniversaries of
the date of grant, the relevant grantee may exercise options up to
50% and 100% respectively.

During the year ended 31st December 2011, a total of 3,000,000
share options were granted to certain employees pursuant to
share option scheme, of which 100,000 share options were lapsed
during the year ended 31st December 2011. The granters can
exercise these options at an exercise price of HK$1.108 per share
in ten years period starting from the expiry of twelve months from
the date of the granting of options, being 28th March 2011.
Commencing from the first and second anniversaries of the date
of grant, the relevant grantee may exercise options up to 50% and
100% respectively.

15 B4
Y 1))

(i)

(&)
REBEEZZ-—ZF+-A=+—BLHF
E - IRIRERES 2 - 5 233,800,000
MERECE T Z2RTESRINE
T - M E 700,000 &% 400,00017 B
BERBE-T—TFR-_T—F+=
A=+—HLEFEERXY - RBEEZZT
——F+ZA=+—BLEEE  BIE
1,000,00017 B Ak i o A A AT B IR
BEHBBBEIZZE—ZTFWA+H) B
T AR EmARZTFR - LAGHR0.82
PETTETTE BT TR T AR - TP
Mz E—RETRFR  BEAEANS
BIFT1E50% 5 100% 2 B AR HE -

REEZZ——F+ZA=1+—BLHF
E - RIBERETE - & 2£3,000,00019
BRED R T2 8T - mESH 100,000
NERECRBEE-_Z——F+=A
=+ —BIEFERKY o AR AR
ERYRSHEI=E——F=A=1+/\H)
B @A EmABZ TFEAN - SR
11088 LRI TR BT S IEARAE - 1
BERBZE—REZRAFHE  HERR
AA 5 RIFTE50% K. 100% 2 B REHE o

ZEMERATE - 2011FFR 101



—

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B ISR R M

15 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 15 BRA& @)
Share options (Continued) BREGE)
(i) (Continued) (i) (&)
The assumptions used are as follows: FTARERZRAT
29th
18th February ~ 23rd June 1thJuly  September 7th April  28th March
2004 2006 2007 2008 2010 2011

ZE2EME ZETRE CBRtE ZET\§ ZB-BF Z3--F
ZATNB RA=tZH tAt-B hAZtNA mAtH =ZA=t+N\R

Exercise price (in HK dollar) TfE(ET) 240 149 124 0.604 0.82 1.108
Fair value of the options (in RMB) BREATEARE) 20,193,000 3,919,000 9,390,000 2,756,000 12,527,000 1,377,000
Risk free interest rate (in %) ER R FIE(%) 1.34-4.43 491 4.757 3133 2.865 2.820
Expected life (in years) BHEH(E) 54-6.6 32-5.5 24-6.2 3.8-4.8 3.4-5.9 3.8-4.9
Volatility (in %) BE) (%) 32 348 49 72.2 79.8 776
Expected dividend per share (cents) HESRRE(D) 0 0 0 0 0 0
At the working date before options were granted, 17th February REREEREA 2 TER - —ZZTWF
2004, 22nd June 2006, 10th July 2007, 26th September 2008, ZAtER - ZTTERFAAZ+Z=H

6th April 2010 and 25th March 2011, the market value per share ZTTEFLA+TAH  ZETN\FNA
was HK$2.45, HK$1.45, HK$1.24, HK$0.55, HK$0.82 and HK$1.1 Z+AH - ZE-ZFEMASNEEZE
respectively. ——H=ZAZ+HA BRWESIA

24587 ~ 1.45%8 7T « 1.2487T » 0.55/8
T~ 0.82BTT R 1. TETT ©

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their RITEBERESE RITEEZEFHET :
exercise prices are as follows:

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme ()  BERAFIBRRAERE S
2011 2010
—E2——-F —T-%F

Exercise Exercise

price price
in HK$ Share in HK$ Share
Expiry date per share options per share options

BRET BhET
FHA 1@ BRE T8 FE i
At 1st January ®n—A—H 0.44 9,147,120 0.44 9,147,120
Exercised 217 - - _ _

At 31st December 17th December 2013

Wt+=-—B=1+—H —E-=F+-A++H 0.44 9,147,120 0.44 9,147,120
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15 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 15 RA& @)
Share options (Continued) BRRE(E)
(i) (Continued) (i) (%)
(i) Share Option Scheme (i) RERRERTS
201 2010
—g--% ~3-%F
Exercise Exercise
price price
in HK$ Share in HK$ Share
Expiry date per share options per share options
SRET BT
L e BRE 1768 Rk
At 1st January 2.40 6,874,000 2.40 7,139,000
R—A—H 1.49 3,642,000 1.49 4,286,000
1.24 9,295,000 1.24 11,698,000
0.604 12,220,000 0.604 14,100,000
0.82 33,100,000 0.82 -
1.108 - 1.108 -
Granted 2.40 - 2.40 -
k3 1.49 - 1.49 -
1.24 - 1.24 -
0.604 - 0.604 -
0.82 - 0.82 33,800,000
1.108 3,000,000 1.108 -
Lapsed and exercised 2.40 (245,000) 2.40 (265,000)
R RITE 1.49 (274,000) 1.49 (644,000)
1.24 (928,000) 1.24 (2,403,000)
0.604 (2,420,000) 0.604 (1,880,000)
0.82 (1,400,000) 0.82 (700,000)
1.108 (100,000) 1.108 -
At 31st December 18th February 2014
W+ZA=+—H~ “Z-WEZRATNH 2.40 6,629,000 240 6,874,000
23rd June 2016
—E-R"FRAZt+=H 1.49 3,368,000 1.49 3,642,000
11th July 2017
T+ +A+-H 1.24 8,367,000 1.24 9,295,000
29th September 2018
ZE-N\FNAZTIA 0.604 9,800,000 0.604 12,220,000
7th April 2020
—TZTFMALEA 0.82 31,700,000 0.82 33,100,000
27th March 2021
“T-—F=ZfF=-++tH 1.108 2,900,000 1.108 -

ZEMERATE - 2011FFR 103



& HY IR

15 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

104

Share Award Scheme

On 23rd November 2011 and pursuant to the Share Award Scheme,
the Board resolved to grant an aggregate of 24,181,000 shares to 72
selected employees (including an executive director of the Company).

As at 31st December 2011, 17,654,000 shares had been purchased by
the trustee as awarded shares pursuant to the terms of the Share Award
Scheme. The awarded shares will be held by the trustee in accordance
with the rules of the Share Award Scheme and the relevant trust period.
The awarded shares are subject to vesting periods from 6 months to 42
months.

The following table represents the movements for number of shares
under the Share Award Scheme for the year ended 31st December
2011.

—
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15 BRA )

MR 17 2 Bt &l

MN-T——F+— A= += B WRERD EE
HE EESRERNMNLHERERTAE
24,181,000/% © BEALQR]—HBHITES ©

BE-"Z—F+-A=+—8  ZHARE
B&1n 22 B AT 8 2 15 B B 17,654,000 1 A 52
BIRR1D - 22 S HERAR D S BB AT AR IR IR (5 48
B RN AEZANMEE c FHEPRG
VEEAACERZE42(EA -

TRIRED ZEASRBE—T——F+=
A=+ ALLFEROHBEZEIFR

Number of

Shares

f&1HE8E

As at 1st January 2011 RZZE——F—H—H -
Shares purchased from the market KRG EEERGD 17,654,000
Shares vested during the year AEEDHFBRD -
As at 31st December 2011 WZE——F+"A=+—H 17,654,000

The following is a summary of the shares granted, vested and lapsed
during the year since the set up of the Share Award Scheme:

R-ZZB——F+ZA=+T—R L FERH B
SHEPE TGO EE EHmT

Number of shares
(in thousand unit)

R EE
(F5)
Cumulative

Total 2011
Rit4ag —E——F
Granted during the year AEEEET 24,181 24,181
Shares lapsed L Cr ) - -
Shares vested 57 B AR - -
Allocated but not vested ENEERERE 24,181 24,181

The Group has adopted the requirements under HKFRS 2 to account for
the equity compensation expenses of the shares granted at the date of
grant at fair value.

HC International, Inc - Annual Report 2011
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16 OTHER RESERVES 16 Hitf#E

Group
158
Shares held
Share-based Share for share
Share Capital Other Merger compensation redemption  Exchange reward
premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves reserve reserve scheme Total
kB RER o) R REHE
RVEE  EARE BMEE  ANEE  CRERE WERE  ENRR  FERG &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETT  ARETn  ARETT  ARETR
At 1st January 2010 RZT-25-F-4 132,734 987 - 108,830 29,07 496 (6,845) - 265,273
Share based compensation - W% 2 E~

value of employee senices ~ [EERIEE - - - - 1931 - - - 1931
Erercise of share options fribiERE 310 - - - - - - - 310
Acquisition of additional WENERREIMNER

interests in a subsidiary (HsE17)

(Note 17) - - (48,474) - - - - - (48,474)
Currency translation difference  S%E} £ - - - - - - (645) - (645)
At 31st December 2010 R-E-Z%

+ZA=+-H 133,044 987 (48,474) 108,830 37,002 496 (7.490) - 224,39
At 1st January 2011 RZE—F-F-H 133,044 987 (48,474) 108,830 37,002 496 (7.490) - 224,39
Share based compensation - BURIT A 2 EE-

value of employee senices  EERKERE - - - - 6,731 - - - 6,731
Exercise of share options ke 1,06 - - - - - - - 1,306
Currency translation difference  E%ER£E - - - - - - (2,688) - (2,689)
Issuance of new shares Bk 62,475 - - - - - - - 62475
Shares purchased forshare (7 2Bl E|

award scheme BN - - - - - - - 2238 @3y
At 315t December 2011 RIF—F

+-A=t-H 197,325 987 (48,474) 108,830 43733 496 (10,178) (22,234) 270,485
SHAERAT - 2011 FER 105
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16 OTHER RESERVES (continued) 16 HfufEE )
Company
LN
Shares held
Share-hased Share for share
Share Share compensation redemption  Exchange reward Accumulated
capital  premium reserves reserve reserve scheme losses Total
WG RER Rt Riym:

Bx  EBER CRREE  BERRE  EXGR  FRER  ZHER aif
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBODD  RMBOOD  RMBO0D  RWBOOD  RMBO0D
ARRTT  ARBTL ARETR ARETR  ARRTT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

At 1st January 2010 R-E-55-f-A 52,055 132,734 26,197 496 217 - (28,161) 183,704
Loss for the year TEEBR - - - - - - (7,09) (7,099
Share based compensation - valueof  WRAZAZBE-

employee services EBREEE - - 6,851 - - - - 6,851
Exercise of share options EBRE 61 310 - - - - - 371
Currency translation difference RREHZES - - - - 10 - - 10
At 31st December 2010 R-E-5+-A=1-H 52,116 133,044 33,648 496 (207) - (35,260) 183,837
At 1st January 2011 R-E—%-f-A 52,116 133,044 33,648 496 (207) - (35,260) 183,837
Loss for the year TEEBR - - - - - - (6,737) (6,737)
Share based compensation - valueof ~ WRAZHZBE-

employee senvices EBREEE - - 6731 - - - - 6,731
Exercise of share options HEEE 295 1,806 - - - - - 2,101
Currency translation difference BHEEE - - - - (68) - _ (69)
Issuance of new shares Bk 4473 62,475 - - - - - 66,948
Shares held for share award scheme i) B 2l IR - - - - - (22,234) - 22,234)
At 315t December 2011 RZE—F+ZA=1-A 56,384 197,325 40,379 496 (275) (22,234) (41.997) 230,578
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17 TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING 17 ERFEZERERRS

INTERESTS

On 28th October 2010, the Group acquired an additional 18% of the RZBE—ZF+A-+N\H » KEERIEER
issued and paid-up share capital in It REZFARIFR EFERAF (Beijing REWIEREEN BRI REBRERERE
Huicong International Information Co., Ltd.) (“Beijing Huicong"), RAR(TIERETE]) FEIM8% BT R
a subsidiary of the Group for a purchase consideration, including BA - WERE(BRERIRRN)NABARE
transaction costs of approximately RMB56,122,000 from the non- 56,122,0007T °

controlling shareholder.

The carrying amount of the non-controlling interests acquired and EREIEE R RETTR S  FTURE IR AR
consideration paid in excess of carrying value recognised within equity as w2 REELRRERANERBLERE 2N
a result of the transaction with non-controlling interests were as follows: REWT :

2010

—E-TF

RMB’'000

ARBFIT

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired FRUC B SRR i 25 2 AR TED (B 7,648
Consideration paid for the non-controlling interests, BN FEEREZRE(BERZKA)

including transaction costs (56,122)

Consideration paid in excess of carrying value recognised Az NIERBHEMEZ BRE

within equity (48,474)
The effect of transaction with non-controlling interests on the equity HE_ZT—ZTF+-_A=+—HILFE 8
attributable to the Company’s equity holders for the year ended 31st ERERZRFEARRNRIREREARIGERZ
December 2010 was summarised as follows: FERT

2010
—E-TF
RMB’000
ARETFTT
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to ~ ANQ BI#ERS 1B AJE(GAREE

the equity holders of the Company RE B 6,290
Changes in equity attributable to shareholders of the WEE—RWE R RREIMER FTE S

Company arising from the acquisition of additional AARIRERERERE

interests in a subsidiary (48,474)

(42,184)
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18 TRADE PAYABLES, DEFERRED REVENUE AND
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18 BMNRM - EMEWA LUK B8

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES ARk HMEMSFIE
Group Company
rEE b NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—2——f | ZT-TF | ZF——% | _T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTr | ARBTT | ARBTR | ARETT
Trade payables (a) FERTBRZN(a) 2,285 2,262 - -
Deferred revenue FEIELA 290,820 195,965 - -
Accrued expenses and other payables [E&TE A I H4th fE~ 78 29,699 50,311 301 232
322,804 248,538 301 232

HENAREREMN - ARSEHRBZRMESR
HAFERE -

Balances are denominated in RMB and the carrying values of these
balances approximate their fair values.

(@) The aging analysis of trade payables is as follows: (@) ERBRFZRRITMAT

2011 2010

— —TTF

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARET T ARET T

Current to 90 days BNEAZ 90K 2,052 1,083
91 to 180 days 91£ 180k 8 898
181 to 365 days 181E365K 25 279
Over 1 year HBim—F 200 2
2,285 2,262
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP

B HP R

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax relates to the same tax

19 EEFEH — REH

—

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EEAEASITENAEENNAEELR]
BIAREERE - MEEMSH S K FE 58
FHERE - AR RIS A E R B EEE -

jurisdiction. The offset amounts are as follows: HIHSBEMOT -
2011 2010
=F——F —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TR AREETTT
Deferred income tax assets (to be BEEMBEHEEEREBG
recovered after more than 12 months) + @ A%EMD) 2,563 1,735
Deferred income tax liabilities (to BEEMEHEEEREBS
be settled after more than 12 months) +ER%BE) (8,904) -
(6,341) 1,735
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows: RIEFTS TR B ) FREMT ¢
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TT ARETTT
At 1st January R—H—H 1,735 3,501
Charged to the consolidated statement of Re e BRIk
comprehensive income (note 24) (FizE24) (8,076) (1,766)
At 31st December R+—_A=+—8 (6,341) 1,735
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP (continued) 19 EZEFEH —AEE e
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year FREERIBEERB B R RIEEER
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the W RIEERAAR)AT -

same taxation jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred tax assets BEHREEE
Tax losses
HIEEE
2011 2010
—E——fF —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETTT

At 1st January w—A—H 5,843 3,501
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated statement  (¥1[&), T A& Gt Ea sk
of comprehensive income (2,731) 2,342
At 31st December Rt+t—_A=+—H 3,112 5,843
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEARS
Others Deferred expenses Total
Hith EERY Hst
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

—E——-§ | Z2-%F | ZB-—-§ | 2T | ZE-—F | %%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR | ARETT | ARETR | ARETT | ARETR | ARETR

At 1st January n—H—H - - 4,108 - 4,108 -
Charged to the consolidated ~ RAHHRA ER
statement of comprehensive  #1f&

income 1,810 - 3,535 4,108 5,345 4,108
At 31st December Wt+=-—A=1+—H 1,810 - 7,643 4,108 9,453 4,108
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry forwards to FE AT 7% I 25 1R K 0] A2 38 38 R 2R FE AR Bt v
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future B FREEMEHEERREETIE
taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred tax BiE - AERUER(ZZT—ZFF: ARE
assets of RMB Nil (2010: RMB1,586,000) in respect of losses amounting 6,344,0007T ) A A S R R R ERFHUA Z
to RMB Nil (2010: RMB6,344,000) that can be carried forward against BR - VERRECHELEE(ZZ—ZF: A
future taxable income. R¥1,586,0007T) °
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20 INCOME TAX PAYABLE AND OTHER TAXES 20 E#HMEHRHMEHTE -

PAYABLE - GROUP 58
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBFIT
Income tax payable: FEFIPRISH -
Corporate income tax EMEH 8,898 5,424
Other taxes payable: HAbFEHBIE
Business tax R 7,596 6,405
Cultural and development tax XAb REET 427 1,872
Other taxes H A IR 1,760 4,271
9,783 12,548
21 OTHER INCOME 21 HMA
2011 2010
—E2——fF —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBFIT
Continuing operations BREEEER
Interest income FLE WA 3,777 2,033
Government grants TR B 5,480 4,043
9,257 6,076
The Group received grants mainly from 4t 5 Bf B /@ for promoting AEEFZEICRMBRKEEE - BIERE
electronic trading platform amongst the entities in the PRC, the FEEMEMIZEFRSHTA  REFXA
conditions specified in the government approval were fully achieved TR Z IR ERNFRNRHEK -
during the year.
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT ARETTT

Discontinued operations BRI
Interest income FEHBA - 44
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22 EXPENSES BY NATURE 22 BHEEECER
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Continuing operations BEREER
Cost of trade catalogues and yellow page TR NM=EE A ZRA

directories 32,544 34,143
Cost of on-line services B RS HERARTS 2 AR 50,915 23,606
Cost of seminars and other services &t R E MRS 2 AN 30,349 24,062
Marketing expenses MHHEES A 20,345 15,318
Network and telephone expenses RERCYSE Rt 13,393 13,752
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN S 1,975 1,996
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments BETIXRA(BEESHE)

(note 23) (Mf5E23) 196,742 156,509
Amortisation of land use rights (note 6) b (5 FARE 2 5H (P 5E6) 427 427
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 7) B A E B (7)) 2,619 2,997
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y - BEMREZITE

(note 8) (Hf3E8) 14,815 12,590
Provision for impairment and write off of trade  FEUNBR Z 2 SR (B R4 R (P EE11)

receivables (note 11) 1,559 618
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment & - E L& E 2 Wk (98) (49)
Operating lease payments in respect of land and B @+ A& 7 K43

buildings 13,617 13,384
Provision for impairment of other receivables H Ao FEGRIE 2 R E B

(note 11) (F7E11) 2,284 405
Over provision of other tax payables Hib e FimnE e (7,430) _
Provision for impairment of intangible assets mAEZREE (H7)

(note 7) 3,481 -
Other expenses Hib A 28,004 21,689
Total cost of revenue, selling and marketing SHEKA - SHERTMSHEEERANUK

expenses and administrative expenses TIRE REsE 405,541 321,447
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22 EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued)

23

22 MBI EcERw

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBFIT
Discontinued operations RIS ER

Cost of market research and analysis TSHFE R DT 2 A 26,942 42,779
Marketing expenses TISHEER - 728
Network and telephone expenses HE KB E R 376 533
Auditor's remuneration SRR & - -

Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments BIRA(BEESZHE)

(note 23) (Fff5E23) 19,936 26,050
Amortisation of intangible assets | EE 7B - 195
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment WME - BEMEREBEZITE

(note 8) GET)) 357 599
Operating lease payments in respect of land and AR+ RET 2 QEHLNR

building 2,134 2,844
Other expenses HAb#E A 4,275 5,442
Total cost of revenue, selling and marketing HEKA - HERMISHEEERNUK

expenses and administrative expense (a) 1T E 4258 (a) 54,020 79,170

(@) The expenses by nature of year 2011 only contained from January (a)

to September 2011.

T FMEMESBIERAREES
T——F—AFAA

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 23 EERABEX
2011 2010
—E——F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARBFIT
Continuing operations BESEER
Wages and salaries TENHT 177,161 138,597
Retirement benefits costs (a) RREFIK R ) 13,229 11,496
Share based compensation — value of VAR 245 2 71
employee services —REERBEER 6,352 6,416
196,742 156,509
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23 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (continued)

The employee benefits expenses amounting to RMB2,681,000 (2010:
RMB3,989,000), RMB43,533,000 (2010: RMB48,547,000) and
RMB 150,528,000 (2010: RMB103,973,000) are recognised in cost of
revenue, administrative expenses and selling and marketing expenses,
respectively in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

14

23 EEEANEXZ @
EERAMAIZAH AR 2681,0007T (=
T—ZF : AR¥3989,0005m) AR
43,533,0007T( = —=F : AR48,547,000
7T) M AR 150,528,0007C (T2 —F4F : A
R#103,973,0007) 7 Blst AG HHERA W &
RSHERAE THREAURBERMBHES

}Eﬁ °
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TF T ARBFT
Discontinued operations BB

Wages and salaries TERF® 18,543 22,668
Retirement benefits costs (a) RIREFIKA ) 1,014 1,867

Share based compensation — value of AR 2 ffE
employee services —EERKER 379 1,515
19,936 26,050
(a) In accordance with the PRC regulations, the Group is required to (a) REFEMAMN AEBEGFHERERR

make annual contributions to the state retirement plans calculated
at 20% of the basic salaries of the employees, and employees are
required to contribute 8% of their basic salaries to the plans. The
Group has no obligations for further pension payments or any
post-retirement benefits beyond these annual contributions. The
retirement benefits are paid directly from the plan assets to the
retired employees and are calculated by reference to their monthly
basic salaries at the date of retirement and periods of service
rendered.

As at 31st December 2011, there was no forfeited contributions

available to offset future retirement benefit obligations of the
Group.
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23 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (continued) 23 EERABEZ e
(b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (b) EZREREEAEHSE
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31st HE_Z—F+A=+—HILFE "
December 2011 is set out as below: BEEEZ2HMEIN AT
Share based

Employer's compensation
contribution  from share

to pension option
Name of Director Fees Salary scheme schemes Total
HBRER 2
RBIRHEZ Bz
BEEnE ik i EEAR RA3 SR et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETZR

Director Mr. GUO Fansheng
Ex FBRAEFLE - 600 48 - 648
Mr. GUO Jiang (Note 1)
TS (1) - 600 48 691 1,339
Ms. GUO Bingbing
Fhkikzt - 680 14 560 1,254
Mr. LI Jianguang
TENFE - - - - -
Mr. ZHANG Ke
RrREE 100 - - - 100
Mr. XIANG Bing
BERAE 100 - - - 100
Mr. GUO Wei (Note 2)
() 50 - - - 50
Mr. LEE Wee Ong (Note 3)
Lee Wee OngZt 4 (Fi5E3) 34 - - - 34
Mr. ZHANG Tim Tianwei (Note 4)
FAELE(MT) 17 - - - 17
Total
Bt 301 1,880 110 1,251 3,542
Note 1: Mr. Guo Jiang is a director and also the chief executive officer. MEE1 : TS AERERFRITHAAE -
Note 2: Mr. Guo Wei was re-designated from an independent non- fiF2 : BRAEER-ZT——FATANE
executive Director to a non-executive Director on 10th June EMITEEHERIENTES ©
2011.
Note 3: Mr. Lee Wee Ong was appointed as non-executive director on M45E3 : Lee Wee Ongt R T ——F N A
9th September 2011. NBEEERIENITES -
Note 4: Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei was appointed as non-executive director ffitd : RREBEER-_Z——F+—A—H
on 1st November 2011. BZERFBITES -

ZEMERATE - 2011FFR 115



—

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B ISR R M

23 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued) 23 EEEANEXZ @
(b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (Continued) (b) EZRSHREEAEHME(E)
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31st HE_Z-ZF+_A=+—HILFE "
December 2010 is set out as below: BEEZHMETNT
Share based
Employer's compensation
contribution from share
to pension option
Name of Director Fees Salary scheme schemes Total
BEBREE
RIRGTEZ Rz
EEpsg ne 240 EEH R @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARETT ARETTT

Director Mr. GUO Fansheng
- PRLEEE - 600 45 - 645
Mr. GUO liang
TkA - 600 4 983 1,625
Ms. GUO Bingbing
Lokk izt - 90 2 120 212
Mr. LI Jianguang
FRREE - - - - -
Mr. ZHANG Ke
RREE 80 - - - 80
Mr. XIANG Bing
HERE 80 - - - 80
Mr. GUO Wei
FREE 80 - - - 30
Total
@t 240 1,290 89 1,103 2,722
(c) Five highest paid individuals () HEuUBEHFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AEERFARMLSESHALTERERS
Group for the year include two (2010: one) directors whose (ZE—ZF: —R)EF - GzMeER
emolument is reflected in the analysis presented above. The EXENzHMHA R « RERERNTE
emoluments payable to the remaining three (2010: four) individuals B=B(ZZE—ZF  OB)ATZBIe
during the year are as follows: T
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR¥TFT ARETTT

Basic salaries, housing allowances, share options, E7A#H 4 - EE12EL - BARKE -

other allowances and benefits in kind HZBE R E YIS 3,061 3,027
Retirement plan contributions IRIRET IR 28 42
3,089 3,069
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23 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (continued) 23 EERABEZ e
(c) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) () EuBEFAL(E
The emoluments for these three remaining individuals (2010: four) BEEB=RALTHN(2010: MBS
fell within the following bands: BT :

Number of individuals

AE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-EF
Nil to HKD1,000,000 (equivalent to Nil to Z 51,000,000 70 (FAEH
RMB850,900) T & AKR¥850,9007T) 1 3
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 (equivalent to 1,000,001 7% 1,500,000/ 7T
RMB850,900 to RMB1,276,350) (FBER AR¥850,9007TE
AR#1,276,3507T) 2 1
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 (equivalent to 1,500,001 70 22,000,000/ 7T
RMB1,276,350 to RMB1,701,800) (FBERAR1,276,35070E
AR%1,701,8007T) - -
(d) During the year, no emoluments have been paid by the Group (d) FRAREEWEOESS - XA &
to the Directors or the five highest paid individuals mentioned AT AERME - ERINAZRIN
above as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as AREER 2 SR EBA 2 fE(=
compensation for loss of office (2010: Nil). T—TF |-
24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 24 FTEBiBEX
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARBFIT
Continuing operations: BEREER
Current income tax expense EHFTSHAY
— Hong Kong profits tax (note a) —&BENEH (MisTa) - -
— The PRC Corporate income tax (“CIT") (note b) —FEIDERER ([DEMER])
(MizEb) 1,190 361
Deferred income tax expense (note 19) RIEFTIS R 2 (FI5E19) 8,076 287
9,266 648
Discontinued operations: IR
Current income tax expenses EHFTSHAY
i —(REMEH 3,077 -
Deferred income tax expense REFTE RIS
(note 19 and note 25) (FtsE19 % ft7¥25) - 1,479
3,077 1,479
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24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 24 FREBIFEXZ )
(@) No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as there is no (@) HREFAABREBELERTRT -
assessable profit arising in Hong Kong for the year (2010: Nil). HIRREBFERELEE (22—
F:E)o
(b) The PRC corporate income tax represents taxation charged on (b) FECEMSREFREAEBRRFAEE
assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in TS FTTE & (RS T ER A 770 R Sk FE AR B AR
the cities in the PRC in which the Group operates. Wz BT -
The tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC is 25%, EHRBERIMBARBRAMRNER
except for subsidiaries granted with preferential tax treatment as 25% - WETEARTRIRAE ZHE
High/New Technology Enterprise, and subsidiaries established in NGIVYS G lE Ry LS o avad 1) =N
Special Economic Zone in the PRC, of which the applicable tax BIR = BREEE - D AIIR15% K%24%
rates are 15% and 24%, respectively. 2 AR A o
The tax on the Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations REE A AR B EERBIA SN 2 18 8
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation FRAAEEARMEER 2B XA EMSER
rate of the home country of the Group companies as follows: HEERNAT :
2011 2010
—=E——fF —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Profit before income tax B PAS A0 AL ) 42,072 2,280
Tax calculated at 25% (2010: 25%) 25% B KETE 2 FiIR
(ZZ—F4F 1 25%) 10,518 570
Effect of different taxation rates in other cities HM MKW TR E 2 & (1,824) (44)
Income not subject to tax AN 2 A - (193)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR 2 2 H 2,158 1,824
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses  EhfF R AR 2 Fi B E 12 (1,155) (1,859)
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset JEIEFAISTIEER TR
was recognised TIgE B - 350
Recognition of deferred tax assets for previously i 1T A MR 18 518 M 12
unrecognised tax losses EERRIBEE (431) -
Income tax expense FriS iR 9,266 648
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25 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

B HP R

RN

In 2011, the Group disposed of its equity interest in it REIEH (=5 A

BB R A7) and Sales JV Co., an associated company which were =8
engaged in market research and analysis businesses in the PRC, for a A)
consideration of RMB21,548,000. #Z

Analysis of the result of the discontinued operations, and the result
recognised on the disposal of the subsidiary including the associated
company is as follows:

-% ——¢ AEETE
BRAERATIREE égAﬂ(J‘%Hﬁ%%A
)2 HxZMEm REABAREE21,548,0007T °
ZRAN P B E ISR RDITELRS -

—

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

tREREE

RIMEEEBEERNENB AR THERESE
(BHFEBEDE) 2T

2011 2010
=F——F —TFF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBFT
Revenue HEWA 55,376 71,475
Expenses (note 22) B R (ME22) (54,020) (74,297)
Share of net profit of an associated company D QB AEF (HFE10)

(note 10) 2,390 1,287
Profit/(loss) before tax of discontinued operations IR 278 R RS A (E5i8) 3,746 (1,529)
Income tax credit ﬁﬁ ST L - -
Profit/(loss) after tax of discontinued operations IHEEE TS 2 BT (E18) 3,746 (1,529)
Pre-tax profit on disposal of discontinued operations ﬁ%fﬂu:%« TR 7 TR A 7,891 -
Income tax on disposal of discontinued operations &4 | F4E L ¥ TS (3,077) -
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued NEERIEREEG

operations w L, (E18) 8,560 (1,529)
The cash flows for the discontinued operations are as follows: mirsE g s BensnT

2011 2010

— —TTF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥F T ARETTT

Operating cash flows EHERE 1,382 4,004
Investing cash flows %xéi%éff% (22) (32)
Financing cash flows BMERSRE - -
Total cash flows Ren=Ess 1,360 3,972
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25 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 25 HRILEHERK )
In 2010, the Group disposed of its equity interest in It RIEH=E RZZ—ZF AFELEERLEREHESR
&1z B R {liAR AR, which was engaged in business-to-business EERMBERAB ZRAELR  ZARRFTEH
e-commerce involving foreign trade and related business in the PRC, for NEBMINEEELEEETHE AR
a consideration of approximately RMB16,033,000. % - REXAARE16,033,0007T ©
Analysis of the result of the discontinued operations in 2010, and the RIZ—2F  RIMEEEBEBERBENEB
result recognised on the disposal of the subsidiary is as follows: NRIFTERSEE 2T ¢
2010
—T-FF
RMB’000
ARETTT
Revenue HEUA 2,005
Other income HAWA 44
Expenses 2 (4,879)
Loss before tax of discontinued operations IHEE TS 2 BRFLRTE 18 (2,830)
Income tax credit Fﬁ SHE R
Loss after tax of discontinued operations IR TS 2 R E 1R (2,830)
Pre-tax gain on disposal of discontinued operations AR E AT 27 2 BTG 12,585
Income tax on disposal of discontinued operations HEKR I EEEE 2 TSR (1,479)
Profit for the year from discontinued operations REER PGB ETE 2 BT 8,276
The cash flows for the discontinued operations are as follows: BIrE g s RenEnT
2010
—TEF
RMB’'000
ARETFT
Operating cash flows LR eRE (1,816)
Investing cash flows KEReRE (6)
Financing cash flows MERSNE 2,700
Total cash flows ReMEEE 878

26 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF 26 ZAARIfE#GEE ABLER
THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in RARIERREE AENEBAREE,737,000T
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of RMB6,737,000 (ZZ2—Z2F : AR¥7,099,00070) BAEARAF]
(2010: RMB7,099,000). IS RREIE o

120 HC International, Inc - Annual Report 2011



—

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27 EARNINGS PER SHARE

28

& HY IR

27 SRER

2011 2010
—E2——F —E-TF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥TT ARBFIT
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations attributable ZNA F#Ez51H A FEIGFERKE
to equity holders of the Company ¥%55(58) 32,942 (2,021)
Profit from discontinued operations attributable to  ZN/A FIHERS 15 A JEIL 4R L& &
equity holders of the Company E Sl 8,263 8,956
41,205 6,935
2011 2010
=F——F —TTF
No. of shares No. of shares
RHEE [:ghar 2 qE!
("000) ('000)
(FR) (FR)
Weighted average number of shares in issue BTG 2 i8R 518,190 488,658
Incremental shares from assumed exercise of share B&{TEE I HEAREMIL N2
options granted R&D 27,925 6,742
Diluted weighted average number of shares BEE IR ERLER 546,115 495,400
Basic earnings/(loss) per share — from continuing ~ FREREFN (BB —FELE
operations (in RMB) (B (ARE) 0.0636 (0.0041)
Basic earnings per share — from discontinued GIREAREF| — 4R HRE K
operations (in RMB) (ARE) 0.0159 0.0183
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share — from continuing EEEE R R, (HiE) —HEKE
operations (in RMB) E=¥5(ARE) 0.0603 (0.0041)
Diluted earnings per share — from discontinued AR E R — 4R | R L %
operations (in RMB) (ARE) 0.0151 0.0181
DIVIDENDS 28 KRE
No dividend was paid or declared by the Company during the year (2010: RABAFENBENLERKRE(ZE—F
Nil). Fm)e
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29 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 29 REXBELEZRE
(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash (a) KRBANRAEKEERCRESRNTFEY
generated from operating activities R
2011 2010
—E2——5F —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBFIT
Profit before income tax (including discontinued — BRFATEF (B23E
operation) IR ZETS) 53,709 10,506
Adjustments for: PR
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y - BB NRE e
(note 8) (Mi5E8) 15,172 13,189
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 7) | EERE(WFET) 2,619 2,997
Provision for impairment and write off of trade  FEUREE R~ R E B &
receivables, net ey - FE 1,559 618
Provision for impairment of other receivables HoAth EUGRIE 2R B R 2,284 405
Amortisation of land use rights (note 6) b AR 8 (Pl RE6) 427 427
Share based compensation — value of employee  BARX{H 2t 2 (& — B &
services (note 23) AR EE (FFE23) 6,731 7,931
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BEREE 2 WG
equipment (note b) (M3EDb) (98) (49)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note c) HEHBRA A2 Yz (Kt (7,891) (12,585)
Over provision of other tax payables Bt AT TR S B (7.430) -
Impairment of intangible assets (note 7) | AR RE(HET7) 3,481 -
Share of profit of an associated company DAEEEE R B)E A
(note 10) (FfFzE10) (2,390) (1,287)
Interest income (note 21) FLEMA(HI7E21) (3,777) (2,077)
Operating profit before working capital changes 48 & & & 8haT 2 &L L% 64,396 20,075
Increase in trade receivables, deposits, FEUERK ~ e - ERFER
prepayments and other receivables, amount H A fEIRUE - fEU
due from a related company, direct selling costs,  BAE# A FIZRIE - HiEHNE
amount due from an associated company, RS~ PR A RIFIA
long term deposit REfRE N (55,035) (29,299)
Increase in trade payables, deferred revenue, FEATERR ~ M ~ FERT
accrued expenses and other payables, B A R EADERRUE
other taxes payable o S TR 1 AN 110,625 107,023
Net cash generated from operations KEEBEEZIREIFRE 119,986 97,799
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29 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (Continued) 29 #i&

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment (b)
In the consolidated cash flow statements, proceeds from disposal

(9]

of property, plant and equipment comprise of:

EREEZHE @
HEWE -« BERRE S FERE
EAHBLRERNLENE  BELS

"'IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
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B2 FERERRE
2011 2010
—EB——F —T-TF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%ET R ARBFIT
Net book amount: BREDFE
— Property, plant and equipment (note 8) —WE - BB KAk (FiFEs) 126 26
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - B KRRz W
equipment (note 22) (KtsE22) 98 49
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE - WFEKREZ
equipment Fiigskia 224 75
Disposal of subsidiaries () HEMEBEAR
2011 2010
—E——F —EEF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥F R ARBFIT
Net assets disposed of (excluding cash and FIHEZEEZE(TEE
cash equivalents) ReRBELEEY)
Property, plant and equipment (note 8) M - BB K E (FIFES) 379 1,141
Interests in an associated company (note 10) i ARz (EE10) 5,185 -
Intangible assets (note 7) fER g E (EET7) 167 1,100
Trade receivables FEUER R 19,595 -
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e~ TBRFUE R EAM RN FIE 1,222 414
Trade payables FERTARFR (15,594) -
Accrued expenses and other payables FEtE B R E h ERN I (3,569) (2,793)
Tax payable JESBIIE - (29)
Non-controlling interests ES g (3.092) -
4,293 (167)
Pre-tax profit on disposal of a subsidiary HE— R B AR Z BRI F 7,891 12,585
12,184 12,418
Satisfied by: LATRB A Z A
Cash received Wz He 21,548 16,033
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of W THEZRe MRS
ZEM (9.364) (3,615)
12,184 12,418
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CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued)

(d) Non-cash transactions
There was approximately RMB12,531,000 in respect of purchases
of property, plant and equipment which have not been paid as
at 31st December 2010. Such balance has been fully settled as at
31st December 2011.

—

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9 REXEKRELEZEE®W

d) *BEEXB
R-ZBE-TF+-_A=+—0  BEmMK
NEE - BEREEHEZFTEROARE
12,531,0007T ° WEHRBEN —T——4F
+—A=+—HBE -

COMMITMENTS 30 7F&¥E
Commitments under operating leases REHNRIE
At 31st December 2011, the Group had future aggregate minimum RZE——F+ZA=+—8  KEEHEF
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of Z BRI BRI HH A S A BB 2 IEAE
buildings which expire as follows: ERHGEAT
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARETFT
Within one year —FER 9,880 10,730
In the second to fifth year inclusive —EEhF(RIEERME) 7,866 18,180
17,746 28,910
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31 REE
As at 31st December 2011, there were no material contingent liabilities RZE——F+_fF=+—H AEBEHES
to the Group (2010: Nil). AXARBE(ZZE—FTF &) -
RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 BEMALRS

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant
influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions,
or vice versa. Related parties may be individuals (being members of
key management personnel, significant shareholders and/or their close
family members) or other entities and include entities which are under
the significant influence of related party of the Group where those
parties are individuals.
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32 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The following significant transactions were carried out with related

32 FABALRZ @
AT AR AT RT EAZS

parties:
(a) Sales of services (a) SHERK
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TR ARBT T
Sales of services SHERTS
- R EBREREEFBRNERAF — It REBEEREEEA
(technology services) (i) BRAT (MRS () 211 211
- R EBREREEFHRNER A (be granted — It R EBIERAE B
the right to use the domain names and BRARI(EREFR
trademark) (ii) i R AR ) (i) 240 240
- RO REBRMSEEARNERAF Sales —ItRHAKREBRMISGESR
WV Co.) (iii) AERAFI(HESER
7)) 58,346 75,467
58,797 75,918

U]

IR EEEREEAMWABRAR, a company owned as to
80% by Mr. Guo Fansheng, the Chairman of the board of
directors and an executive director of the Company, entered
into a three-year Technology Services Agreement with the
Group in 2002, and on 31st December 2004, the parties
entered into a supplemental agreements which extended the
term of the Technology Services Agreement to 31st December
2007 and on 30th December 2007, 30th December 2009
and 30th December 2011, the parties entered into another
supplemental agreements which extended the term of the
Technology Services Agreement to 31st December 2009, 31st
December 2011 and 31st December 2014 respectively.

Pursuant to the agreement, the Group received technical
service income from Jb REEZER(E EAHBR AT based
on the working hours devoted to the service and support.

RITTZF - tRBHEEREER
BHBRAR(—REAARAES
CERRNTEFTDIANELLEES
80% w2 A F]) RSB ET L —
M=ZFHEMRBHE - R=F
TNF+—A=Z+—BEHE U
T - BEMRESHEEHRE =
TELE+-_A=+—H -R=F
T+E+ZA=1+A - ZZTThE
+—A=+AKR=T——%+=A
=18 &FBE T H®E 8
BREHHESATEHE_TTH
F+ZA=+—H0 -ZF—F
+ZA=+—HRZZT—NF+=
A=+—8-

R - AR EIR IR AR &
XEZIRAIERBEERERE
AR A BMEERAMT RS AL
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32 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Sales of services (Continued)

126

(ii)

(iii

I REBERERESHMAER AT entered into a three-year
Domain Names and Trademark Licence Agreement with the
Group in 2002, and on 31st December 2004, the parties
entered into a supplemental agreement which extended
the term of the Domain Names and Trademark Licence
Agreement to 31st December 2007 and on 30th December
2007, 30th December 2009 and 31st December 2011, the
parties entered into another supplemental agreements which
extended the term of the Domain names and Trademark
Licence to 31st December 2009, 31st December 2011 and
31st December 2014 respectively.

Pursuant to the agreement, 1t RERE R = SHBAER
‘AA) was granted the right to use the domain names and
trademark owned or attained by the Group during the
agreement period for a fixed fee.

Fulfilment JV Co. entered into a fulfilment service agreement
with Sales JV Co. for a period of 3 years, under which
Fulfilment JV Co. will provide fulfilment service to Sales JV
Co. in relation to market research fulfilment services, at a
price charged at 66.7%, 67.3% and 66.2%, for the 3 years
respectively, on the net annual revenue of the counterparty.

The disposal of Fulfilment JV Co. was completed on 30th
September 2011, the transactions pursuant to this agreement
are no longer related party transactions of the Group since
then. The actual transaction amount for the period from 1st
January 2011 to 30th September 2011 was approximately
RMB49,060,000 (2010 full year: RMB65,356,000).

A subsidiary of the Group entered into another fulfillment
service agreement with Sales JV Co., under which the Group
would sell e-Eyes products, at a charge of actual costs plus
12% markup. The agreement was expired on 28th November
2011 with no renewal. The actual transaction amount
for the period from 1st January 2011 to 28th November
2011 was approximately RMB9,286,000 (2010 full year:
RMB10,111,000).
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32 AL @

(a)

pi

HERK (&)

(i)

(iii)

RZZTZ=F  tRBBEBRLEE
BHABRAREARNEET I —H=
FHEE REET A HE c RF
TNFE+ A=+ —BEHE L
T - BEEREIRTAREE
HE_TT+HF+=-_A=+—8"
RZZTTLF+-A=+H =%
ThFE+ZA=+tHERZT——F
+—A=+—8 €FBiIufRT
WE - SEE KRBT BED B
EHE_TTNFT_A=+—
A ZZ2——+-_A=+—HK
—E—NMF+ZA=+—H-

RIEGHE - LR BHERERE S
BR A EZE T & REREL
i AR B A A HAS 2
I

BHEERREEESE QR
— AP =F2BHRBEHE
Bl BHAGERRBRZR=-F
2RI AU ER 8 F 5 F E R AT EE
266.7% ~ 67.3% % 66.2%{EA(E
% AEEALARIREBMATS
WEB A RIS 2 B HIBRT

AEEBR=ZZ——FhLA=1+BH
ERYEEDNT - At - REAR
FATETTR ST B AN E BRI
AERS - B=—ZT——F—F—H
E-T——FNAZTHILHHEN
ERR 554 A AR 49,060,000
T(ZE—ZTF2F: ARE
65,356,0007T) °

AEBZ —RWBARHEBEESE
RAFIN S —HRARBHE &
I NEBBIRERKAINLE12%
BAEABR  HEebyesEm ©
HER—E——F+—A=1+/\H
JEW  WEEE AT ——F—
A—Bz=Z—F+—A=+N
AILHBENERR SHBHABARE
9,286,000 C(—ZE—TF2F : A
R#10,111,0007T) °
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32 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32 EBALRZ @)

(b) Purchases of services (b) BERH®
2011 2010
=F——F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TT ARETTT
Purchases of services: BERY
-t REBREREEERNERA — It REEEREEEA
(online information d|str|but|on services) (i) BEAR (M EEF
B IR ) (i) 240 240
- AR EBRERESFRERA -t REBEEREESH
(online advertisement publlcatlon services) (ii) BEAR (W EES
BRI (i) 100 100
340 340
(i) tREBIRERESEAMERADE entered into a three-year i) m:zzfi ﬁ?%@@ &1z
Online Information Distribution Agreement with the Group BEHABRAREALE nT_L*
in 2002, and on 31st December 2004, 30th December 2007, {ﬁiiﬁﬂfﬁjj SNl a%

30th December 2009 and 30th December 2011, the parties
entered into supplemental agreements which extended the
term of the Online Information Distribution Agreement to
31st December 2007, 31st December 2009, 31st December
2011 and 31st December 2014 respectively. Pursuant to the
Online Information Distribution Agreement, 1k RE 2%
= B AR 2 A received distribution income from the
Group at a fixed fee. It disseminated the Group’s business
information and research reports on its web-site and on those

as stipulated by the Group.

—ETMF+=—A=+—H"
T+F+=—A=+H" _7$h¢
+ZA=+HER=ZZT—F+=A
E+Ev§ﬁﬂjﬁ%m%v%ﬁ
BEbGHEIFEHE=ZZT
t¢+ A=+—8 2%
+-_A=+—8 -Z2——F+=
A=+—BR=-Z—NF+=A
=t+t-—B -REBLEESEHD
# I REEEREEERERA
AR E E B F A8 S E U A B R
A o ZARMEEAL R AL EIETE
2t ERm AR R B R 2 s B R

RS o
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32 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

128

(9]

32 FABALRS @

(b) Purchases of services (Continued) (b) BERKE)

(i) b RBEERIZEFEMABEMRAT entered into a three-year iy MZZZT-F - tREBHEEXE
Online Advertisement Publication Agreement with the Group BHARRAREAREERL—
in 2002, and on 31st December 2004, 30th December 2007, B=ZFHPELESTEHGE  »
30th December 2009 and 30th December 2011, the parties ZETNF+_A=+—H =%
entered into supplemental agreements which extended the T+FE+TZA=1TH - ZZTTIF
term of Online Advertisement Publication Agreement to 31st +—A=+BR=-_ZT—F+=A
December 2007, 31st December 2009, 31st December 2011 =+—8  gHITUERBE &
and 31st December 2014 respectively. Pursuant to the Online PERENEHEDNTHE_F
Advertisement Publication Agreement, jt R Z I H(Z 8 T+F+ZA=+—HB ZFTTh
B R A 7] received publication income from the Group F+-A=+—H -—FT——F
at a fixed fee. It published the Group’s advertisements on its TZA=t+—BRZZT—NE+Z
website and on those as stipulated by the Group. A=+—H - REHELESTER

& EREBEERESFEANBERA
AR EE B A MRS B ES T
BUWA o ZREEERMRAEE
1B 2 HAb s EFIBAEBES -

Key management compensation () FEEEASHM

2011 2010

—E——F —T-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBFT

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits  #r& & E 52 HAE BEF] 6,232 4,360
Share-based payments VARG 7 R b 2 1P 3R 3,263 4,293
9,495 8,653
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